
All Council meetings are digitally recorded and will be available on the City website: www.cityoftalent.org. The meeting 
location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired, or for other 
accommodations for persons with disabilities, should be made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to the City 
Recorder at 541-535-1566, x1012. 

The City Council reserves the right to add or delete items as needed, change the order of the agenda, and discuss any 
other business deemed necessary at the time of the study session and/or meeting.  

1. Call to Order / Roll Call

2. Additions / Corrections to Agenda

3. Community Announcements

4. Speakers Heard on Non-Agenda Items
Limited to 5 minutes or less per Mayoral discretion.

5. City Reports

5.1 City Manager Report ............................................................................................................................  

5.2 Urban Renewal Activities Report .........................................................................................................  

6. Commission / Committee Member Appointments
Limited to 5 minutes or less per Mayoral discretion.

6.1  Appointment of Member to Planning Commission ............................................................................. 03 

7. Consent Calendar
The consent calendar consists of items of a repeating or routine nature that are considered under a single
action. Any Councilor may have an item on the consent agenda removed and considered separately on
request.

7.1 Acknowledgment of Together for Talent Committee Meeting Minutes, March 5, 2024 ...................... 06 

7.2 Acknowledgment of Parks & Recreation Commission Meeting Minutes, February 28, 2024 ............. 08 

8. Public Hearings
Public hearings are conducted under a prescribed procedure depending on the topic.  The presiding officer will
conduct the hearing in accordance with those procedures that will allow for public input at the announced time.

8.1 Public Hearing and Adoption of Ordinance 2024-948-O for Annexation of 6100 Colver Road to be
Included in the City Limits .................................................................................................................... 10 

9. Unfinished Business
Unfinished business consists of outstanding items from previous meetings. These items will be handled in the
same manner as regular agenda items.

9.1 Review Format of FY 24/25 Council Goals, Priorities, and Action Plan / Schedule workshop ........... 95 

10. New Business
Speakers will be provided the opportunity to offer comments on action items after staff members have given

TALENT CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

- HELD AT TOWN HALL & VIA ZOOM –
206 E. Main Street 

April 17, 2024 - 6:45 PM 
 

Page 1 of 126



their reports and, if there is an applicant, after the applicant has had the opportunity to speak. Action items 
are expected to result in motions, resolutions, orders, or ordinances. 

10.1 Consideration of Urban Forestry Committee Recommendations on Public Tree Management ......... 107 

10.2 Presentation by Together for Talent Committee on Proposed Talent Gas Resolution ....................... 125 

11. Commission / Committee Reports

12. Other Business and Future Agenda Items

13. Written Communications

This item is for written communications that have been submitted to the entire Council and where a request has been
made that the item be included in the record. It will contain the communications only, and not additional attachments
or Internet re-postings. Those items may be e-mailed directly to Council members or may be distributed in person via
the City Recorder at Council meetings following an oral communication to Council. There will not be any Council
discussion or public comment on this agenda item.

14. Adjournment

Upcoming Council Meetings 

May 1st    5:30 pm   – Study Session 

May 1st 6:45 pm   – Regular Council Meeting 

Page 2 of 126



City Council Agenda Report 
Meeting Date:  April 17th, 2024 Staff Contact:  Gary Milliman 
Department:  Administration E-Mail: gmilliman@cityoftalent.org 
Staff Recommendation:  Appointment Estimated Time:  5 mins.

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL 
The appointment of member to the Planning Commission. 

BACKGROUND 

Section 22 of the City Charter states: 
The Mayor and Council shall appoint: 
(1) Members of committees and commissions established by Council, and
(2) Other persons required by the Council to act in an advisory capacity to the Council or
its appointed committees and commissions.

The City’s Commission and Committee Appointment Policy, adopted by the Council on July 3, 2018, 
includes the following: 

Staff will send completed applications to the Mayor and to the applicable Commission/ 
Committee for review. Applicants will be interviewed by the Mayor and the Commission/ 
Committee. The Commission/Committee will make a recommendation to the Mayor, who 
will, if so desired, then make an affirmative recommendation to appoint at the Council 
meeting. Mayor appointments, including the term of the appointment(s), will be placed 
on the Consent Agenda for Council. Re-appointments to a Commission or Committee 
will be made by the Mayor with approval from Council without the need for Mayor or 
Commission/Committee interviews. 

The Talent Planning Commission consists of seven members. There is currently 1 vacancy for 
membership on this commission. Candidate Jason Clark was interviewed by Mayor Ayers-Flood and 
recommended for appointment to the seat. 

RELATED COUNCIL POLICIES 

POTENTIAL MOTIONS 
I Move to affirm the Mayor’s appointment of Jason Clark as a commissioner of the City of Talent Planning 
Commission for a four-year term beginning April 17th, 2024.  

ATTACHMENTS 
• Application for Clark, Jason

6.1

Page 3 of 126



1 of 2 �

City of Talent 
110 East Main Street • P.O. Box 445 • Talent, OR 97540 

Phone: (541) 535-1566 • Fax: (541) 535-7423 

Application for Commission or Committee 

Position Applied For: Date:   

Name:    

Address:

City: State: Zip:  

Mailing Address (if different): 

Contact Phone: E-mail:

Current Occupation:   
(If retired or unemployed, state your general or past profession) 

How long have you lived in Talent?   
(If you do not know if you live inside the city limits or urban growth boundary, please view the official zoning map at 

City Hall.) 

How long have you lived in Jackson County? 

Are you an employee of the City of Talent, an occasional or potential contract employee, or do 

you have any other real or potential conflict of interest in working or serving in this capacity? 

□ Yes ☐�No

If yes, please describe: 

I believe that I am qualified for and should be considered for the above position(s) for the 

following reasons (attach additional sheet if necessary): 

For Office Use Only 

Date received: 

Planning Commissioner 2024/02/28

Jason Clark

Talent OR 97540

Ecological Consultant

14 years

14 years

X

I served on the Talent City Council for five years from 2019 through January 2024. I also served on the Talent 
Urban Renewal Agency including  two years as the vice chair. Additionally, I served as the liaison to the Talent 
Urban Forestry Committee. Prior to my time on City Council, I served as chair of the Urban Growth Boundary 
Citizen Advisory Committee. I am familiar with the Talent Municipal Codes and city processes concerning 
permitting applications and evaluation by the Planning Commission and city staff. I have an eye for detail and an 
appreciation for the importance of following city procedures and adhering to city codes. This knowledge, 
experience, and commitment to Talent contribute to my competence to serve on the Talent Planning 
Commission. 

Page 4 of 126



2 of 2 �

By signing this application, electronically or otherwise, I affirm that all information included is true 

and accurate to the best of my knowledge. 

Signature: Date:  

How to Submit: 

• By email to cityrecorder@cityoftalent.org

• In person at Talent City Hall, 110 East Main Street, Monday through Friday, 8:30 a.m.
to 5:00 p.m.

Questions? 

Call City Hall at (541) 535-1566 x 1012 or send an email to City Recorder, at 

cityrecorder@cityoftalent.org 

2024/02/28

Page 5 of 126



TOGETHER FOR TALENT 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

April  5th, 2024 at 4:00 PM 

REGULAR COMMITTEE MEETING – 4:07 p.m. 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call

2. Motion: Approval of March 2024 Meeting Minutes
Unanimous approval 

3. Discussion Items

● Application of Nancy McKinnis to be on Together for Talent Committee
������� Unanimous recommendation to appoint Nancy Castillo McKinnis 
������� Recommendation to delay appointment of Nancy Castillo McKinnis until she can 

attend an in-person meeting 
● Special meeting on Monday 4/8 at 4pm to finalize Spring Into Recycling event on

4/13/24

● Recycling Event for 2024.
■ Planned for April 13th from 10am-4pm. Sharing the same date as Pear

Blossom festival in Medford and Arbor day in Talent.
■ Title is: "Spring Into Recycling" event. Event advertising should make it

clear that the event was for uncommon recyclables, with examples.
■ Volunteer Shifts are as follows:

● 9:30 am -11:30 am
● 11:15 am - 1:15 pm
● 1 pm - 3 pm

Members Present: Members Absent 

Charles Roome  

Hector Zaragoza, secretary 

David Spinney 

Also Present: 

City Liaison Tessa DeLine 

Councilwoman Eleanor Ponomareff 

7.1

Page 6 of 126



● 2:45 pm - 4:45 pm
■ Planned expense less than $125 for signage and $150 for volunteer

honorarium and coffee
■ David to do a volunteer request blast. Social Media will be posted.
■ Confirmed Vendors are: After Bits, Goodwill, Get in Gear, Radius (metal)

������� Volunteers: 5 confirmed, ideal goal is 20. List of volunteers needing to be sent to 
city for insurance purposes, waivers and safety vests needed 

������� Please note, the State of Oregon does not consider kitchen appliances (such as 
blenders) to be recyclable. 

● Unanimous recommendation to present Resolution No. 2024___ to City Council

Adjourn: 5:15 pm 

Next Regular Meeting: Tuesday, May  7, 2024, 4 pm; Community Center, small meeting room. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
Hector Zaragoza, secretary 

The City of Talent is an Equal Opportunity Provider 

Note: These minutes and the entire agenda packet, including staff report and referenced 
documents are reposted on 

the City of Talent website (www.cityoftalent.org) after each meeting. The minutes are not a 
verbatim record: the narrative has been condensed and paraphrased to reflect the 

discussions and decisions made. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact TTY phone number 1-800-735-2900 for English 

and for  Spanish please  contact TTY phone  number 1- 800-735-3896. 

Together for Talent Regular Meeting Minutes I April  8th,, 2024 

Page 7 of 126



Talent Parks Commission meeting minutes 

February 28, 2024 

1) Call to order: 6:32pm by chair Hilton Walker.
2) Roll call: Ted Hilton Walker, Mark Krause, Melissa Hendriks, Robert Slayton, Ana Byers, Brian

Marlia-Larsen. Absent: Charley Cross
3) Consent calendar:

a. Approval of minutes. Motion by Krause, Hilton Walker seconds, unanimous
4) Public comment: Community member Margaret Clark in attendance to interview for position on

Parks Commission.

5. New Business

a. Official welcome to Commissioners Brian Marlia-Larsen and Melissa Hendricks

b. Appreciation for departing Commissioners Donna Ruiz, Charley Cross, and Julie Greene

c. Election of Vice Chair for 2024. Melissa Hendricks nominated. Vote to approve was unanimous.

d. Interview of Commission applicant Margaret Clark. Motion passes unanimously to recommend
Margaret to Parks Commission.

e. Replacement of sprinklers near Little Free Library in Chuck Roberts. Robert Slayton: plans are in
development for handling the irrigation in that area and Chuck Roberts in general. The little library will
be returned at some point soon to another suitable location. Motion to remove sprinkler and replace
with drip system in planter by Brian Marlia-Larsen, Melissa Hendrick’s seconds. Passes unanimously.

f. Reschedule study session for Chuck Roberts design. Study session will happen 530pm prior to the
6:30pm parks meeting at the community center on March 13th. Urban Forestry and Talent Garden Club
will be invited.

g. Summary of City goal setting session by Chair. Chair Hilton Walker summarized efforts for website
design for parks and other parks related business.

6. Staff Report – Public Works

a. Public Works updates

i. Kamerin Springs Restroom facility. Fully open and operational.

ii. Talent Tiny Park sign. Still a work in progress.

iii. Other updates. Water usage at Chuck Roberts under discussion to reduce cost. Splash pad water
recycle system is in development.

7. Ongoing Business

a. Dog Park actions. City attorney should review language of modified ordinance for allowing dogs on
leash in Chuck Roberts by next city council meeting.

7.2

Page 8 of 126



b. Labyrinth update. none 

c. Skate Park update. Bids for resurfacing are solicited. Grants are available and plan discussed for 
applying.  

d. Tennis/Pickleball update. 167 responses so far (less than 2 weeks available and not yet published in 
TNR). 

8. Council Liaison Report – Ana Byers 

9. Committee Reports. Council goal setting session. Together for Talent working toward a community 
input survey and outreach in a single survey.  

a. Report from Bee City Subcommittee. Chair Hilton Walker summarized Gerlinde Smith’s update: Spiral 
native pollinator garden has been planted at Colver and Talent Ave. More pollinator kits will be supplied 
in the Fall of this year and the Bee City group will apply for one.  

b. Report from Talent Public Art Committee. Given Donna Ruiz’ departure from the commission it was 
discussed whether we should continue having this as an agenda item. Robert Slayton would like to keep 
it given relevance of art efforts to park design and planning.  

10. TNR Suggestions. Robert Slayton recommends publishing results from questionnaire.  

11. Items for Next Month’s Agenda. Robert Slayton would like to see template letter of support for 
skate park upgrade as a project for grant writing that is approved by parks commission that can be sent 
with grant applications. End of march and end of sept 2024 are deadlines for grants.  

12. Adjournment. 8:03pm 

Meeting minutes submitted and attested by

Ted Hilton Walker, Chair Parks and Recreation Commission

Page 9 of 126



City Council Agenda Report 

Meeting Date:  April 17, 2024  Staff Contact:   Kristen Maze/Gary Milliman 
Department:  Comm. Dev.  E-Mail:  gmilliman@cityoftalent.org 
Staff Recommendation: Annexation Request Estimated Time:  30 mins.

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL 

Review and discuss annexation of 43 acres of land located in the unincorporated area of Jackson 
County adjacent to the city limits, at 6100 Colver Road. The current parcel is zone Exclusive Farm 
Use, once annexed to the city this zone district will become Public Lands and Facilities (PLF) zone 
district consistent with the Public Facilities-Civic comprehensive plan designation.  The property was 
recently approved for an urban growth boundary (UGB) amendment to the Talent UGB.  The 
applicant, Phoenix-Talent School District “District” desires to move forward with development of 
the property.   

BACKGROUND 
The applicant is requesting approval of annexation in order to move forward with development of the 
property.  The property has several existing uses operated by the School District.  This list includes. 

• A school bus operations facility,
• Two baseball fields,
• One softball field,
• Two soccer fields,
• A cross country running course,
• Agricultural education facilities,
• Parks/open space, and
• Facilities and structures to serve the above uses.

The parcel was created in 1942 via a Warranty Deed found in the county records.  This property was 
lawfully created because the parcel was created by deed before September 1973 enactment of zoning 
regulations in Jackson County and prior to any land division regulations.   The subject property was 
transferred to the Phoenix-Talent School District in 1965 via a Bargain and Sales Deed recorded in 
Jackson County official records.   

In 2023, the City of Talent approved Ordinance 2023-967-O, amending the City’s Urban Growth 
Boundary and the comprehensive plan map designating the subject property as Public Facilities -Civic. 
The School District is requesting annexation to the City of Talent to move forward with improvements 
and development of the site.  This annexation is required prior to any development on the project site. 
If annexation is approved, the District will be required to apply for a conditional use permit for future 
improvements to the site.   A conditional use permit will require a public hearing before the Planning 
Commission, conditions will be set for the development at that time.   

Prior to annexation and development, the School District initiated a Phase 1 and 2 Environmental Site 
Assessment (ESA).  Phase 2 ESA involved soil and groundwater investigations.  The subject property 

8.1

Page 10 of 126



was used for agricultural purposes as far back as 1910.  An agronomy station administered by Oregon 
State University Extension Service used the site from 1911 to 1958. After 1958 the site was used for 
agricultural purposes until 1970 when the School District purchased the site.  As a result of these uses 
some concern has been expressed by local residents regarding the Districts’ proposed use of a School, 
Boys and Girls Club and development of the recreational facilities on the site.  The School District 
retained CBA Planning to undertake the environmental review work and a summary report is included 
in this packet.  
 
The School District and the City Council conducted a joint meeting on March 21, 2024, hosted by the 
District to understand these environmental issues moving forward.  (See attached Technical Memo 
dated March 26, 2024). 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
The city has received six public comments.  Four of those comments are in favor of approval of the 
project and two comments would like the project to be denied. (See attached public comments) 
One commenter is concerned about the Wagner Creek Road extension decreasing their house value 
and their privacy.  The other negative comment also had concerns about Wagner Creek Road extension, 
privacy issues and destroying their greenspace.   
 
FINDINGS 
TITLE 18: TALENT ZONING CODE 
18.200.020 Petition. 
Except for annexations initiated by the council pursuant to TMC 18.200.030, a petition to annex 
shall include the following information: 
 
A. Consent to annexation which is nonrevocable for a period of one year from the date of its signing. 
Finding: A copy of the required consent to annexation forms, including the required nonrevocable 
consent have been provided with this application (Exhibit A). The standard is met. 
 
B. Agreement to deposit an amount sufficient to retire any outstanding indebtedness of special 
districts defined in ORS 222.510. 
Finding: All required taxes, including those paid to special districts, are current as of the date of this 
application. A copy of the most current tax statement is provided demonstrating compliance with the 
provisions of this section (Exhibit B). The standard is met. 
 
C. Boundary description and map prepared in accordance with ORS 308.225. A registered land 
surveyor shall prepare such description and map. Subsequent to council approval of the proposed 
annexation the boundaries shall be surveyed and monumented as required by statute. 
Finding: A copy of the required boundary description and map prepared in accordance with ORS 
308.225 by a registered land surveyor is provided with this request (Exhibit A and B). The 
standard is met. 
 
D. Written findings addressing the criteria in TMC 18.200.040. 
Finding: The subject property is within the UGB as approved in 2023 by the City Council.  The 
property is adjacent to the city limits along the easterly property line.  The applicant has made a 
written request for concurrent consideration to zone the property as Public Land and Facilities zone 
that is consistent with the comprehensive plan designation of Public Facilities -Civic. The site is 
presently served by basic urban services including both sewer and water.   The property currently has 

Page 11 of 126



irrigation rights for 42.8 acres from the Talent Irrigation District.  Rogue Valley Sewer Services 
provides sanitary sewer services to the site. The property fronts Colver road, which is maintained as 
a rural Major Collector.  As part of the UGB amendment the City of Talent agreed it would take 
jurisdiction of Colver Road as part of any future annexation.  See traffic study attached for details.   
Findings addressing the criteria in TMC 18.200.040 are provided in the attached application. The 
standard is met. 
 
E. Written request by the property owner for a rezoning. Provided, however, no written request shall 
be necessary if the annexation has been approved by a majority vote in an election meeting the 
requirements of Section 11g of Article XI of the Oregon Constitution (Ballot Measure No. 47). 
Finding: The subject property has a City of Talent Parks and Public Facilities Comprehensive Plan 
Designation and is zoned Exclusive Farm Use on Jackson County’s zoning map. Once annexed into 
the City of Talent, the city is required to assign a zoning designation consistent with the city’s 
Comprehensive Plan considering the current comprehensive plan designation, the city’s Public Lands 
and Facilities (PLF) zoning is the appropriate designation, consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
Map and shall be assigned. The property owner accepts this designation and does not request an 
alternative zoning designation. Therefore, a request for rezoning is not required. The standard is not 
applicable. 
 
18.200.040 Approval standards. 
An annexation may be approved if the proposed request for annexation conforms to the following 
approval criteria, or can be made to conform through the imposition of conditions: 
A. The land is in the city’s urban growth boundary (UGB). 
Finding: The subject property is located within the city’s urban growth boundary as per Ordinance 
2023-967-O approved in 2023 and shown on the attached Urban Growth Boundary Map (Exhibit 5 
and 6). 
 
B. The land is currently contiguous for a distance of 60 feet or more with the present city limits. 
Finding: The subject property is adjacent to the city limits along the easterly border for a distance of 
property for more than 60 feet as shown on the Annexation Survey (Exhibit 4). The standard is 
met. 
 
C. The proposed zoning for the annexed area is in conformance with the designation indicated on the 
comprehensive plan map and/or adopted master plan map, and the project, if proposed concurrently 
with the annexation, is an allowed use within the proposed zoning. 
Finding: The subject property has a City of Talent Parks and Public Facilities Comprehensive Plan 
Designation as approved by Ordinance 2023-967-O and is zoned Exclusive Farm Use on Jackson 
County’s zoning map. Although no development is being proposed concurrently, the Applicant is 
requesting the zone map amendment to be Public Lands Facilities consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan Map. The PLF zone would allow the proposed uses, subject to the development review 
procedures set forth in the Annexation Agreement to occur on the site.  The property owner accepts 
this designation and does not request an alternative zoning designation. A concept plan for the future 
development is provided to demonstrate the future development of the property.  (Exhibit 7). The 
standard is met. 
 
D. The following infrastructure can and will be provided to and through the subject property at the 
appropriate stage of development, or sooner if determined to be necessary on the advice of staff: 
1. Adequate facilities for the provision of water to the site, as determined by the public 

Page 12 of 126



works department and/or city engineer; 
2. Adequate transport of sewage from the site to the wastewater treatment plant, as determined by 
Rogue Valley Sewer Services; 
3. Adequate storm drainage as determined by the public works department and/or city engineer. 
Finding: The parcel is served by all required facilities and can continue to be served when annexed.  
Storm Drainage: The subject property is large enough to accommodate stormwater for the proposed 
uses as shown in the Concept Plan.   Sanitary Sewer: The proper is served by Rogue Valley Sewer 
Services which was approved in 2005 after the failure of an existing septic system.  Water Facilities: 
The property is served by municipal water and has an existing water meter.  If future uses are 
proposed, an analysis of municipal water service needs would occur at that time.   The standard is 
met. 
 
E. Adequate transportation can and will be provided to and through the subject property at the 
appropriate stage of development, or sooner if determined to be necessary on the advice of staff. The 
purpose of this standard is to ensure that transportation facilities are extended to adjacent lands that 
are also available for annexation, though they may not be immediately eligible. For the purposes of 
this section “adequate transportation” for annexations consists of vehicular, bicycle, pedestrian and 
transit transportation meeting the following standards: 
1. A 20-foot-wide paved access exists for vehicular transportation, or can and will be constructed, 
along the full frontage of or through the project site to the nearest fully improved collector or 
arterial street. All streets adjacent to the annexed area shall be improved, at a minimum, to a half-
street standard with a minimum 20-foot-wide driving surface. The city may, after assessing the 
impact of the development, require the full improvement of streets adjacent to the annexed area. All 
streets located within annexed areas shall be fully improved to city standards. 
Finding:  The applicant is proposing vehicular transportation improvements in phases for future 
development of the site shown in the conceptual plan.  These transportation improvements include 
provisions for the improvement of portions of Colver road and the construction of an extension of 
Wagner Creek Road to city standards on the site.  Currently the TSP does not classify Colver Road 
west of the existing city limits. Colver Road within city limits is classified as a Collector street and it 
is likely the city will continue that classification along the project site at 6100 Colver Road.   The 
property currently has five driveway accesses along Colver Road. These driveways would be 
reduced to the time of development to manage traffic entering and exiting the site on to Colver Road.    
Adequate vehicular facilities have been planned and will be provided in accordance with the 
appropriate development stages. The standard is met. 
 
2. Where future street dedications are indicated on the city’s “Required Street Connections” maps in 
the transportation system plan, or an adopted master plan, or when required by the city, provisions 
shall be made for the dedication and improvement of these streets and be included with the petition 
to annex. 
Finding: The project site has frontage along Colver Road.   Colver Road is currently a County 
maintained rural major collector.  As part of the UGB amendment the City of Talent agreed to take 
jurisdiction of Colver Road upon future annexation of the site. The standard is met. 
 
3. For bicycle transportation, safe and accessible bicycle facilities exist, or can and will be 
constructed. Should the annexation be adjacent to an arterial street, bike lanes shall be provided on 
or adjacent to the arterial street. Likely bicycle destinations from the project site shall be determined 
and safe and accessible bicycle facilities serving those destinations shall be indicated. 

Page 13 of 126



Finding: The proposed project site has frontage on Colver Road which is considered a rural major 
collector, once annexed to the city the frontage on Colver Road will become city limits and will be 
classified as collector street.  The street will not be an arterial street and therefore does not require 
bike lanes.  The future Wagner Creek Street extension will be built with pedestrian and cycling 
facilities for the entire length of that street for safe ped and bike access.  The standard is met. 
 
4. For pedestrian transportation, safe and accessible pedestrian facilities exist, or can and will be 
constructed. Full sidewalk improvements shall be provided on one side adjacent to the annexation 
for all streets adjacent to the proposed annexed area. Sidewalks shall be provided as required by 
code on all streets within the annexed area. 
Finding: The applicant has proposed adequate pedestrian and bicycle transportation improvements 
in phases that correspond with the development impacts of the proposed uses on the subject property.  
These transportation improvements include provisions for sidewalks along a portion of Colver Road, 
a multi-modal path along the remainder of Colver Road, and the build out of pedestrian and cycling 
facilities along the proposed Wagner Creek extension. The standard is met. 
 
Where the project site is within a quarter of a mile of an existing sidewalk system, the sidewalks from 
the project site shall be constructed to extend and connect to the existing system. Likely pedestrian 
destinations from the project site shall be determined and the safe and accessible pedestrian 
facilities serving those destinations shall be indicated. 
Finding: No site development is proposed as part of this request. The subject property is located 
within ¼ of a mile from an existing sidewalk system and upon site development will be connected to 
the existing facility as required by this section. The standard is met. 
 
5. For transit transportation, should transit service be available to the site, or be likely to be 
extended to the site in the future based on information from the local public transit provider, 
provisions shall be made for the construction of adequate transit facilities, such as bus shelters and 
bus turn-out lanes. All required transportation improvements shall be constructed and installed prior 
to the issuance of a 
certificate of occupancy for any new structures on the annexed property. 
Finding: No site development is proposed as part of this request. There are currently no transit 
services available to the subject property, it is also not likely to be extended to the site.  However, 
adequate bicycle and pedestrian facilities will be provided by the applicant in accordance upon site 
development. The standard is met. 
 
F. One or more of the following standards are met: 
1. The proposed annexation area will be zoned a residential district in accordance with the 
comprehensive plan, and there is less than a five-year supply of vacant and redevelopable land in the 
proposed land use classification within the current city limits. “Redevelopable land” means land 
zoned for residential use on which development has already occurred but on which, due to present or 
expected market forces, there exists the likelihood that existing development will be converted to 
more intensive residential uses during the planning period. The five year supply shall be calculated 
from the most current adopted vacant and redevelopable land inventory, or the inventory in the 
housing element of the comprehensive plan under the direction and approval of the city planner; or 
Finding: The subject property is not zoned residential, nor will it be as part of this request. The 
standard is not applicable. 
 

Page 14 of 126



2. The proposed lot or lots will be zoned a commercial district under the comprehensive plan, and 
the petitioner will obtain site development plan review approval for an outright permitted use, or 
conditionally permitted use, concurrent with the annexation request; or 
Finding: The parcel will be zoned Public Land Facilities (PLF); however, no site development is 
proposed as part of this request. The standard is not applicable. 
 
3. A current or probable public health hazard exists due to lack of full city sanitary sewer or water 
services; or 
Finding: No public health hazard exists on the subject property. The site has sanitary sewer and 
water service to the site.  There has been some concern about previous uses of the site and possible 
contaminants on site.  The applicant has completed Phase 1 and 2 environmental assessments by 
Alpine Environmental.  However, this annexation is not a development application and future 
development is required to go through the final Department of Environmental Quality completeness 
for all environmental concerns. The standard is met. 
 
4. Existing development in the proposed annexation has inadequate water or sanitary sewer service; 
or the service will become inadequate within one year; or  
Finding: The subject property has adequate water and sanitary sewer service available. Adequate 
service can be provided upon development. The standard is not applicable. 
 
5. The area proposed for annexation has existing city of Talent water or sanitary sewer service 
extended, connected, and in use, and a signed “consent to annexation” agreement has been filed and 
accepted by the city of Talent; or 
Finding: The subject property has both water and sanitary service extended and connected and has 
provided the required consent to annexation agreements with this application. The standard is met. 
 
6. There is inadequate infrastructure that is unduly preventing development of UGB lands and 
annexation will provide a means to extend infrastructure; or 
Finding: The subject property has adequate infrastructure and will have adequate infrastructure upon 
development. The standard is not applicable. 
 
7. The lot or lots proposed for annexation are an “island” completely surrounded by lands within the 
city limits. 
Finding: The property is adjacent to the city limits on the easterly side of the property it is not an 
island The standard is not applicable. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Based upon the information submitted, the Talent Community Development Department finds that the 
applicant has provided information demonstrating that the proposed annexation meets or can meet with 
the criteria of the Talent Zoning Code.  
 
The City Council shall review the proposed annexation and approve the property located at 6100 
Colver Road to be annexed into the city limits for future development. 
 
RELATED COUNCIL POLICIES 
None 
 
MOTIONS 

Page 15 of 126



I move to approve Ordinance 2024-984-O for annexation of 6100 Colver Road to be included in the 
city limits. 
 
ATTACHMENT 

1. Technical Memo CSA March 26, 2024 
2. Public Comments 
3. ANX 2024-001 Application with Exhibits 
4. Ordinance 2024-984-O with Exhibits  
5. Annexation Agreement – Colver Fields 
6. Hearing Notices 3/30 and 4/6 

Page 16 of 126



 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 1 – Tech Memo 

Page 17 of 126



 
 

Technical Memorandum 
 
To: Kristen Maze, City of Talent  

Cc: Brent Barry, School District #4 

Date: March 26, 2024 

Subject: Colver Field Development and DEQ Voluntary Cleanup Pathway 
 
 

BACKGROUND 
During the UGB amendment review for the Colver Fields property (identified as 
Maplot 38-1W-22D-1000), participants in the UGB amendment process raised 
questions about historical agricultural use of the property and potential residual 
pesticide environmental contamination from the past agricultural use. 

Even though this type of potential environmental issue is not a land use 
planning issue, the District responded appropriately to the public’s comments 
by engaging Alpine Environmental Consultants to conduct a Phase I 
Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) for the Colver Fields property in the 
summer of 2023.  The Phase I ESA involved a review of Oregon Department of 
Environmental Quality (ODEQ) known contamination databases and historic 
use analysis.  The Phase I ESA indicated historical use as an experimental 
Agronomy Station by the Oregon State University (OSU) Extension Service.  
Briefly summarized, aerial photo analysis and historical records research 
indicates the OSU Extension Service used the Agronomy Station for 
experimentation and testing of row crops and similar farm products; no 
evidence of historic orchard use was identified. 

The historic use pointed up potential for residual pesticides contaminants.  The 
Phase I ESA recommended a Phase II ESA.  The Phoenix-Talent School District 
directed Alpine Environmental to proceed with a Phase II ESA in the fall of 2023.  
The Phase II ESA was completed on March 19, 2024.  The Phase II process 
involved taking representative soil samples of the site and testing them for 
residual pesticides and testing the water quality for the three on-site wells. 

The School District has provided the Phase I ESA and Phase II ESA to the City 
of Talent.  The School District’s understanding, based upon the Mayor’s 
comments at the joint Council/School Board meeting on March 21st is that the 
City of Talent intends to put the Phase I and Phase II reports in the record for 
the annexation and zone change proceedings.  For this reason, they are not 
attached to this memo. 

Briefly summarized, the Phase II ESA revealed low levels of residual pesticide 
contamination, but some of the results were above Regional Screening Levels 
for clean fill but none of the results indicated and immediate risk to human 
health.  The Phase II ESA suggests the School District consider entering 
ODEQ’s Voluntary Cleanup Pathway (VCP) as part of the future development 
of the site. 

CSA has extensive experience working with property owners and the owner’s 
environmental consultants on development project sites with Recognized 
Environmental Conditions (REC).  After reviewing the results of the report with 

CSA Planning, Ltd 
4497 Brownridge, Suite 101 

Medford, OR  97504  

Telephone 541.779.0569 
Fax 541.779.0114 

Nathan@CSAplanning.net 

Page 18 of 126



 

 
 
Memorandum Page 2  

Phoenix-Talent School District management, CSA recommended the School 
District enter the VCP to ensure the contaminants are handled in an 
environmentally protective manner that will result in third-party government 
oversight and approval by ODEQ.  School District Superintendent Brent Barry 
has made the decision to enter the VCP as part of development of the site; the 
School Board has reviewed the report and confirmed the Superintendent’s 
decision to enter the VCP.  Alpine Environmental has been directed to prepare 
and file the Voluntary Cleanup Pathway Intent to Participate Form on the 
School District’s behalf; this is expected to be filed in the coming weeks. 

VCP PROCESS 
The District may initiate the cleanup process at any time, but the site is not 
under any order from ODEQ for immediate cleanup nor is such an order 
expected to be forthcoming.  To perform remediation of RECs economically 
and in a manner that is a fiscally responsible use of taxpayer money, 
remediation is appropriately done as part of new development and 
redevelopment of the site. 

As part of the VCP, the District will be assigned a project manager from ODEQ 
who will work with them from start to finish.  This includes a review of the 
assessment completed by Alpine, a site visit, and the creation of a work plan 
for additional analysis if needed.  The work plan will characterize the REC to 
the satisfaction of ODEQ, determine risks to human health, and evaluate 
potential solutions. 

As an example of potential remediation strategies that might be proposed for 
the site, the Phase II ESA suggested one possible solution would be to excavate 
impacted soils and create berms that can used as buffers between the subject 
property and adjacent agricultural uses.  Done properly, these berms would 
provide remediation that is safe, efficient, and protective of human health. 

Following the approval of the work plan, the School District will submit a 
remediation strategy to ODEQ.  ODEQ will review the remediation strategy to 
ensure the proposed remediation meets all applicable requirements of the 
Environmental Cleanup Law and will gather public comments.  As described by 
ODEQ, the VCP was created to “provide oversight to property owners and 
others wishing to investigate and clean up hazardous substance sites in a 
voluntary, cooperative manner.”   

Once the remediation strategy is approved, the remediation process will 
commence concurrent with the applicable development phase. 

During the course of each development phase build-out, the School District’s 
environmental consultant will document the earthwork is being completed 
consistent with the approved remediation strategy.  Once the applicable 
development phase is completed, the environmental consultant will provide a 
report to ODEQ documenting the remediation has been completed in 
accordance with the approved remediation plan and request a No Further 
Action letter from ODEQ.  An NFA is issued after ODEQ has determined that a 
site “poses no unacceptable risks to human health or the environment.” 

Attached are handouts from ODEQ that provides additional explanation of the 
VCP and NFA. 

Page 19 of 126



 

 
 
Memorandum Page 3  

ANNEXATION & LAND USE PLANNING PROCESS INTEGRATION 
Remediating a Recognized Environmental Condition is not a land use criterion 
nor does the City or State law have any specific criterion regarding remediation 
of an REC as a pre-requisite to annexation.  Nevertheless, annexation is a 
political decision on some level.  The District has no objection to providing 
additional assurance to the City of Talent that an NFA will be obtained from 
ODEQ prior to occupancy of any new or redeveloped components of the site.   

Accordingly, the Applicant agrees to stipulate to a condition of annexation 
approval requiring a NFA letter from ODEQ before receiving approval for 
occupancy or commencement of a new use subject to land use approval on 
the Colver Fields property.   

 

CSA Planning, Ltd. 

 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Nathan Emerson 
Associate 
 
 
Attachments:  

A. DEQ Voluntary Cleanup Pathway Fact Sheet 
B. DEQ No Further Action Fact Sheet  

 

Page 20 of 126



 
 
 

 
 
Environmental  
Cleanup Program 
700 NE Multnomah St. 
Suite 600 
Portland, OR 97232 
Phone: 503-229-5696 
 800-452-4011 
Fax: 503-229-5850 
Contact: Tiffany Johnson 
www.oregon.gov/DEQ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Last Updated: 9/14/17 
By: Tiffany Johnson 

Fact Sheet 

Voluntary Cleanup Pathway 
Background  

 Voluntary Cleanup Program offers two 
options for owners and operators of contaminated 
property to voluntarily investigate and, if 
necessary, clean up their sites: the standard 
Voluntary Cleanup Pathway and the Independent 
Cleanup Pathway. Please see the ICP information 
packet for details on the Independent Cleanup 
Pathway, which 
http://www.oregon.gov/deq/FilterDocs/ICUPathw
ayInfoPacket.pdf.  

Both options offer flexibility and allow for more 
efficient investigation and cleanup to facilitate the 
use, sale, refinancing and/or redevelopment of 
contaminated property, while protecting human 
health and the environment. 

Benefits of voluntary cleanups 
The VCP is a flexible full-service program that: 

Provides DEQ oversight throughout the 
investigation and cleanup. 

Environmental Cleanup Law. 

Is available for high-, medium- and low-
priority sites and all environmental media. 

Is accepted by banks and insurance 
companies. 

Can provide exemption from permits for 
some on-site work. 

Risks
All sites that enter the VCP are 
Environmental Cleanup Site Information 
database. Sites with a verified release are listed on 
the  Confirmed Release List. Sites requiring 
further action are also added to the Inventory List. 

If you enter VCP with a site having high 
environmental risk, and work falls unreasonably 
behind the agreed-to schedule, you may be 
required to enter the Site Response program and 
sign a consent order to ensure that human health 
and the environment are protected. 

Services 

Further Action determinations for sites shown not 
to present unacceptable risks. DEQ also provides 
the following services: 

Preliminary assessment review. 

Risk-based cleanup standards. 

 Operable unit approach, where a portion of the 
site may be redeveloped while cleanup is still 
occurring on other sections. 

 Report/document review. 

 Technical assistance and regulatory guidance. 

 Negotiated scope of work. 

 Estimating DEQ oversight costs. 

 Prospective purchaser agreements. 

 Public participation/public involvement. 
 
How to join the program 
You can join the Voluntary Cleanup Program by 
submitting the Intent to Participate form available 

http://www.oregon.gov/deq/FilterDocs/VCUPathw
ayInfoPacket.pdf. 
manager within 90 days of receiving the Intent to 
Participate form.  
 
Steps in the process 
Some participants have already completed 
significant work at their sites before entering the 
program. Others may demonstrate that their sites 
pose no unacceptable risks, and therefore require 
no remediation. A typical project goes through the 
steps below. 

 You submit the Intent to Participate form. 

 DEQ prepares a cost recovery letter agreement 
and requests a $5,000 deposit when a project 
manager is assigned. An example cost 
recovery agreement is included in this packet.  

 When the agreement is signed and the deposit 
received, DEQ completes a file review, site 
visit, and strategy recommendation as needed 
to assess conditions at your site. 

 DEQ works with you to develop an 
appropriate scope of work and agreement for 
your project. 

 You develop work plans and reports for DEQ 
approval to: define the problem, determine the 
risk to human health and the environment, and 
evaluate potential solutions.  

 You propose a remedy to DEQ; we then 
evaluate it to be sure it meets requirements of 
the Environmental Cleanup Law, and gather 
public comments on the proposal. 

 You implement the remedy that DEQ selects. 

Page 21 of 126



DEQ issues a No Further Action 
determination once protective conditions 
have been achieved through remediation 
and/or institutional controls. This process also 
includes a public comment period. 

Insurance note 
Before beginning investigative and cleanup work 
at a site, responsible parties should evaluate their 
insurance coverage  including present and past 
policies  to determine if the insurance might 
cover part or all of the cleanup costs. They also 
should be sure to discuss cleanup plans with their 
insurance agent before beginning cleanup 
activities. At a minimum, many insurers require 
notice and an opportunity to review cleanup plans 
before action is taken, as a condition for coverage 
of cleanup expenses. 

Contacts for Further Information 
Additional information and materials related to 
the Voluntary Cleanup Program are available on 

http://www.oregon.gov/deq/Hazards-and-
Cleanup/env-cleanup/Pages/Voluntary-
Cleanup.aspx.   

Information about brownfield redevelopment is on 

http://www.oregon.gov/deq/Hazards-and-
Cleanup/env-cleanup/Pages/Brownfields.aspx.  

Information about Prospective Purchaser 
ite at 

http://www.oregon.gov/deq/Hazards-and-
Cleanup/env-cleanup/Pages/Prospective-
Purchaser-Agreements.aspx.  

You may also contact a DEQ regional cleanup 
program representative. 

Alternative formats 
Documents can be provided upon request in an 
alternate format for individuals with disabilities or 
in a language other than English for people with 
limited English skills. To request a document in 
another format or language, call DEQ in Portland 
at 503-229-5696, or toll-free in Oregon at 1-800-
452-4011, ext. 5696; or email 
deqinfo@deq.state.or.us. 

Page 22 of 126



 

 
 

Environmental Cleanup 
Program  
700 NE Multnomah St. 

Suite 600 
Portland, OR 97232 

Phone: 503-229-5696 

 800-452-4011 
Fax: 503-229-5850 

Contact: Tiffany Johnson 

www.oregon.gov/DEQ 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

Last Updated: 10/19/17 

By: Tiffany Johnson 

Fact Sheet 

Information about Oregon DEQ’s 
No Further Action Decisions  
 
Background 
DEQ’s Cleanup and Leaking Underground 

Storage Tank (LUST) programs manage a wide 

variety of sites with different levels and types of 

contamination from hazardous substances, 

including petroleum. Some sites may have one 

contaminant in a small area of shallow soil, 

while others may have high concentrations of 

many substances in soil, surface water, 

sediments or groundwater. A common goal of 

the Cleanup and LUST programs is to lead these 

sites to No Further Action (NFA) 

determinations. 

 

What does an NFA mean? 
DEQ’s Cleanup and LUST programs make a No 

Further Action decision after determining that a 

site – or one part of a site – poses no 

unacceptable risks to human health or the 

environment. This usually follows investigative 

or cleanup activities under DEQ oversight or 

review. It means DEQ will not require additional 

remedial action, based on the agency’s 

knowledge of site conditions when it issues the 

NFA. Some NFAs rely on institutional or 

engineering controls – often less expensive to 

implement than the removal of contamination – 

that are designed to prevent exposure to 

contaminants left in place. DEQ’s Cleanup 

Program labels such sites as Conditional NFAs 

(CNFAs); the LUST Program uses the NFA 

label even at sites where such controls are in 

place. 

 

How do LUST & Cleanup NFAs differ? All 

No Further Action determinations are based on 

meeting established risk standards designed to 

protect human health and the environment. 

However, a LUST NFA usually applies only to 

the contamination relating to the underground 

storage tank system. The LUST NFA may not 

apply to other spills or releases not associated 

with tanks or piping. Conversely, a Cleanup 

NFA usually does apply to the entire facility and 

all suspected sources of contamination. Always 

review DEQ’s NFA letter to know what 

environmental conditions it covers. 

 

What about heating oil tanks? 
Heating oil tanks (HOTs) are a special category. 

Until 1999, DEQ reviewed HOT releases and 

issued No Further Action letters for those sites. 

In 1999, the state legislature created a third-party 

certification program, implemented in 2000. 

Under this program, DEQ licenses independent 

contractors to perform tank decommissioning 

and cleanup, if needed. The contractor certifies 

whether the project involved a clean 

decommissioning or completion of a cleanup 

meeting DEQ’s acceptable risk standards. 

Licensed contractors submit certifications to 

DEQ, and DEQ randomly audits a portion of 

these reports. 

 

What contingencies might an NFA have? 
Sites with Conditional No Further Action 

decisions, and some LUST sites with NFA 

decisions, have formal controls in place that are 

recorded on the property deed and must be 

maintained for the NFA to remain valid. 

 

Other NFA determinations are based on current 

and reasonably likely land and water uses (as 

required by Oregon law), or on expectations of 

certain activities occurring (for example, well 

removal) or NOT occurring (for example, razing 

buildings). When such unanticipated uses or 

events occur, they may create unacceptable risks. 

In any case, site contingencies, which are 

typically identified in the NFA letter, may 

require future actions or ongoing considerations 

on the part of owners/lessees. 

 

NFAs are not forever 
While it does not happen often, DEQ may 

rescind an NFA or CNFA if: 

 DEQ learns of a new contaminant release 

or a previously unknown past release; 

 Contaminant risk factors change 

dramatically as scientific knowledge 

advances; or 

 Conditions linked to the NFA are not 

implemented or maintained as expected. 
 

How can I learn more about an NFA?  
The single most important document to review is 

the site’s NFA letter, which usually outlines the 

basis for the NFA and any associated conditions 

or contingencies. This is often accompanied by a 

DEQ Staff Report that provides details on the No 

Further Action decision process. 

 

To find out more about a site’s conditions, please 

review DEQ’s Cleanup and LUST program 

databases, respectively. 

 
 

Page 23 of 126

http://www.oregon.gov/DEQ
http://www.oregon.gov/DEQ
http://www.oregon.gov/deq/Hazards-and-Cleanup/env-cleanup/Pages/iecontrols.aspx
http://www.oregon.gov/deq/Hazards-and-Cleanup/env-cleanup/Pages/iecontrols.aspx
http://www.deq.state.or.us/lq/ECSI/ecsiquery.asp?listtype=lis&listtitle=Environmental+Cleanup+Site%20Information+Database
http://www.deq.state.or.us/lq/tanks/lust/LustPublicLookup.asp


 

 

Conclusions 
Know your site. A CNFA label indicates that 

controls are in place, but an NFA (that is, no 

Conditional label) does not necessarily mean the 

site is available for unrestricted use. Before 

leasing, purchasing, or financing a site with a 

DEQ NFA or CNFA, know the circumstances or 

conditions that DEQ based its decision on. (See 

Liability Management Tools for Buyers of   

Contaminated Property in Oregon, available on 

DEQs Prospective Purchaser Agreement page.) 

If you’re an owner or operator of such a site, be 

familiar with use restrictions or other conditions 

that DEQ may have attached to its NFA decision 

before you make changes to the property. 

 
For more information please contact: 
Contact Tiffany Johnson, Program Coordinator, 

at 503-229-6258, 

johnson.tiffany@deq.state.or.us. 

 

Alternative formats 
Documents can be provided upon request in an 

alternate format for individuals with disabilities 

or in a language other than English for people 

with limited English skills. To request a 

document in another format or language, call 

DEQ in Portland at 503-229-5696, or toll-free in 

Oregon at 1-800-452-4011, ext. 5696; or email 

deqinfo@deq.state.or.us. 

 

Page 24 of 126

http://www.oregon.gov/deq/Hazards-and-Cleanup/env-cleanup/Pages/Prospective-Purchaser-Agreements.aspx
http://www.oregon.gov/deq/Hazards-and-Cleanup/env-cleanup/Pages/Prospective-Purchaser-Agreements.aspx
mailto:johnson.tiffany@deq.state.or.us
mailto:deqinfo@deq.state.or.us


 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 2 – Public Comments 

 

Page 25 of 126



Page 26 of 126



Page 27 of 126



Page 28 of 126



Page 29 of 126



Page 30 of 126



Page 31 of 126



Page 32 of 126



 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 3 – Application and Exhibits 

 

Page 33 of 126



Page 34 of 126



Page 35 of 126



Page 36 of 126



Page 37 of 126



Page 38 of 126



Page 39 of 126



Page 40 of 126



Page 41 of 126



Page 42 of 126



Page 43 of 126



Page 44 of 126



Page 45 of 126



Page 46 of 126



Page 47 of 126



Page 48 of 126



Page 49 of 126



Page 50 of 126



Page 51 of 126



Page 52 of 126



Page 53 of 126



Page 54 of 126



Page 55 of 126



Page 56 of 126



Page 57 of 126



Page 58 of 126



Page 59 of 126



Page 60 of 126



Page 61 of 126



Page 62 of 126



Page 63 of 126



Page 64 of 126



Page 65 of 126



Page 66 of 126



Page 67 of 126



Page 68 of 126



Page 69 of 126



Page 70 of 126



Page 71 of 126



Page 72 of 126



Page 73 of 126



Page 74 of 126



 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 4 – Ordinance and Exhibits 

 

Page 75 of 126



Page 76 of 126



Page 77 of 126



Page 78 of 126



Page 79 of 126



Page 80 of 126



Page 81 of 126



Page 82 of 126



Page 83 of 126



Page 84 of 126



 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 5 – Agreement 

 

Page 85 of 126



Page 86 of 126



Page 87 of 126



Page 88 of 126



Page 89 of 126



 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 6 – Notices 

 

Page 90 of 126



Page 91 of 126



Return to Headlines

Colver Road update

PTS Board Work Session 03-21-2024PTS Board Work Session 03-21-2024

 MENU

Phoenix-Talent Schools
Excellence for Everyone


Powerschool


Family

Resources


Employment


Facilities


Gmail


Contact Us


Sta� Resources


Lunch Menus

Page 92 of 126

https://www.phoenix.k12.or.us/site/default.aspx?PageType=14&DomainID=1307&ModuleInstanceID=5404&PageID=2859&ViewID=C83D46AC-74FE-4857-8C9A-5922A80225E2&IsMoreExpandedView=True&GroupByField=&GroupYear=0&GroupMonth=0&Tag=
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=sggojWtNAU4
https://www.phoenix.k12.or.us/PTSD
https://www.phoenix.k12.or.us/PTSD
https://ps.phoenix.k12.or.us/public/
https://www.phoenix.k12.or.us/site/Page/2761
https://www.phoenix.k12.or.us/Page/2303
https://www.phoenix.k12.or.us/Page/2308
https://www.google.com/gmail/
https://www.phoenix.k12.or.us/Page/2309
https://www.phoenix.k12.or.us/Page/2310
https://phoenixtalentsd.sodexomyway.com/


April 5, 2024

Dear PTS families,

We are excited to share the latest update about a signi�cant opportunity for our district – the potential

development of a 43-acre property o� Colver Road to enhance our educational o�erings.

Recently, the PTS School Board and Talent City Council representatives/sta� were briefed by Jonathan Williams,

a senior hydrogeologist from Alpine Environmental Consultants, on the environmental integrity of the property.

His �ndings, based on two Environmental Site Assessments, are encouraging. Williams highlighted the need for

some cleanup under the DEQ’s Voluntary Cleanup Pathway program, primarily due to residual pesticides, but

found no immediate threat to human health, including minimal concerns about lead in water samples tested.

You can watch the video above to see Williams' entire presentation. This assessment lays a solid foundation for

our vision to expand educational opportunities and explore partnerships with local youth organizations.

You can read both of AEC’s assessments in their entirety, as well as a summary memo, and a conception memo,

and view aerial photos of the site, by clicking on the �les linked below.

Moving forward, the Talent City Council will play a crucial role in this process. The council is set to discuss the

annexation of the property during a public hearing at its next meeting. This meeting will be held on Wednesday,

April 17 at Talent Town Hall, located at 206 E. Main St., starting at 6:45 p.m. For those unable to attend in person,

a virtual option via Zoom will be available, ensuring everyone can participate.

This proposed annexation is a pivotal moment for our district, o�ering a path to further enrich our students’

educational experience. We value your input and encourage you to take part in this important conversation.

Important �les:

Phase I ESA report

Phase 2 ESA report

CSA Planning Tech memo

Aerial photos of Colver Road property

CSA concept plan



Visit Us

PO Box 698

401 West 4th St.

Phoenix, OR 97535

Get Directions

Contact Us

Site Map

Public Complaints

Procedimiento de la Queja Pública

Public Complaint Procedure

Nondiscrimination

No Discriminación

Page 93 of 126

https://www.cityoftalent.org/council-mayor/page/council-regular-meeting-6
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87557364164
https://www.phoenix.k12.or.us/cms/lib/OR50000021/Centricity/Domain/1307/Colver%20Rd%20Phase%201%20ESA.pdf
https://www.phoenix.k12.or.us/cms/lib/OR50000021/Centricity/Domain/1307/Colver%20Rd%20Phase%202%20ESA.pdf
https://www.phoenix.k12.or.us/cms/lib/OR50000021/Centricity/Domain/1307/CSA%20Planning%20tech%20memo.pdf
https://www.phoenix.k12.or.us/cms/lib/OR50000021/Centricity/Domain/1307/Colver%20Rd%20property%20aerial%20photos.pdf
https://www.phoenix.k12.or.us/cms/lib/OR50000021/Centricity/Domain/1307/Colver%20Rd%20concept%20plan.pdf
https://goo.gl/maps/kAXRLY94tz32
https://www.phoenix.k12.or.us/site/Default.aspx?PageType=15&SiteID=4&SectionMax=15&DirectoryType=6
https://policy.osba.org/phoenix/KL/KL%20D2.PDF
https://policy.osba.org/phoenix/KL/KL%20G2%20SPANISH.PDF
https://policy.osba.org/phoenix/KL/KL%20R%201%20D1.PDF
https://policy.osba.org/phoenix/AB/AC%20D1.PDF
https://or50000021.schoolwires.net/cms/lib/OR50000021/Centricity/Domain/1064//Board%20Policies/AC-Nondiscrimination.Spanish%201-13-22.pdf


Phone: 541-535-1517

Fax: 541-535-3928
Discrimination Complaint Procedure

Procedimiento de Denuncia por Discriminación

Phoenix-Talent Schools does not discriminate on the basis of sex, race, color, creed, religion, national origin, age,

disability, marital status, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, veteran or military status, or any other status

protected by law, in any of its programs and activities and provides equal access to the designated youth organizations

in the Boy Scouts of America Equal Access Act. The following person has been designated to handle inquiries and

complaints regarding the district’s non-discrimination policies and compliance: Kelly Soter, 401 W. 4th Street, Phoenix,

OR 97535 (541) 897-3730, kelly.soter@phoenix.k12.or.us

Questions or Feedback?
Web Community Manager Privacy Policy (Updated)
Copyright © 2024 Finalsite - all rights reserved.

Page 94 of 126

tel:541-535-1517
https://or50000021.schoolwires.net/cms/lib/OR50000021/Centricity/domain/1064/board%20policies/AC-AR%20Discrimination%20Complaint%20Procedure%20%205-04-2023%20D1.pdf
https://or50000021.schoolwires.net/cms/lib/OR50000021/Centricity/domain/1064/board%20policies/AC-AR%20Discrimination%20Complaint%20Procedure.Spanish%20%205-04-2023%20D1.pdf
http://www.finalsite.com/
http://www.finalsite.com/
mailto:webmaster@phoenix.k12.or.us
https://www.finalsite.com/privacy-policy


City Council Agenda Report 
Meeting Date:  April 17, 2024 Staff Contact:  Gary Milliman 
Department:  City Manager E-Mail: gmilliman@cityoftalent.org 
Staff Recommendation:  Review Estimated Time:  10 mins.

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL 
Preliminary review of City Council goals document and possible workshop schedule to finalize Goals 

BACKGROUND 
The City Council conducted a goal setting workshop on February 21, 2024.  Staff has incorporated the 
new information gathered from that meeting into the 2023-24 Goals, Priorities and Action Plan.  It 
should be noted that this plan now has 17 goals and 73 action items.  We need to do some work to 
collapse these goals and action plans into a more manageable program of work.  During his initial 90-
day tenure, the City Manager has assessed that, while aspirational, many of these goals are not 
achievable and action plan items cannot be accomplished given the City’s current and foreseeable 
level of staffing and fiscal capacity. 

The City Manager is recommending an additional workshop to refine the Goals, Priorities and Action 
Plan as a part of the Budget process.   

The City Manager has reviewed the draft 2024-25 budget and future revenue projections with the 
Finance Director, and is preparing for the first Budget Committee meeting on May 1.  It is the 
assessment of the Management Team that the City cannot sustain the current level of services or 
embark upon achieving many of the goals and programs given the current revenue base and heavy 
impact of inflation on expenditures.  The City Manager recommends that the City Council identify the 
top three Goals as: 

1. Develop and approve short and long term financial plans for sustaining existing priority
services including public safety, public utilities and public facilities.

a. Cost of service, fee studies and fee adjustments.
b. Undertaking a public process to explore law enforcement options, including a possible

property tax measure.
c. Continuous evaluation of alternative methods of providing services through staff

attrition.
d. Significantly reduce or eliminate discretionary spending.
e. Seek alternatives to some employee benefit programs.
f. Delay new initiatives that would require new General Fund expenditures.
g. Develop an economic development program that includes, as a priority, a strategy for

increasing and stabilizing the City’s revenue base.

2. Implement the Gateway/Gangnes Road infrastructure project.
a. Collaborate with partners to expedite relocation of existing residents to permanent

housing; remove trailers.
b. Review and refresh infrastructure development strategy and timeline.
c. Prepare new Request for Proposals for development of TURA site.

9.1

Page 95 of 126



d. Select TURA site developer. 
e. Construction of improvements (2-3 years estimated). 

 
3. Establish and/or upgrade basic internal administrative systems. 

a. Establish written policies and procedures on a variety of matters.  This would include 
personnel rules and regulations, use of public facilities, internal control systems, facility 
maintenance schedules, financial management policy, financial projection model, 
vehicle replacement, records management, development review and a host of other 
items needed to provide consistent policy and management direction to staff. 

Only after the City’s financial condition, organizational structure and staffing is stabilized can we 
effectively pursue the Council’s broader vision and policy goals.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Include review of proposed goals and action plan in the first budget meeting, now scheduled for May 
8, 2024.  
 
RELATED COUNCIL POLICIES  

 
POTENTIAL MOTIONS 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

• FY 24/25 - Council Goals, Priorities, and Action Plan 

Page 96 of 126



To help achieve our objectives, these are our goals, priorities, and action items in fiscal year 2024-2025 and beyond. 

Affordable Housing (AF) 

Goal 1: More housing stock for affordable and workforce households 

Effort Level Status Priority 
Level 

Timeline Team Constraints Related Item Notes 

Action Items 

a. Update Buildable Lands
Inventory

Medium In progress A FY 24/25 CCD, 
consultant 

Staff resources/funding AF-1-B 

b. Update Housing Needs
Analysis

Medium B FY 25/26 CCD, 
consultant 

Staff resources/funding AF-1-A 

c. Adopt code changes
for Re-envision Hwy99
Corridor (TGM)

Medium In progress B FY 24/25 CCD, 
consultant, 
PC, Council 

Staff resources/funding 

d. Finalize Title 18 Code
updates

High A FY 24/25 CCD, 
consultant, 
PC, Council 

Staff resources/funding 

e. Establish and adopt
Title 17 Code updates

High A FY 24/25 CCD, 
consultant, 
PC, Council 

Staff resources/funding 

f. Establish Climate
Friendly Area + adopt
code changes

Medium In progress? C CCD, 
consultant, 
PC, Council 

Staff resources/funding Need further clarification / definition of action item 

g. Review agricultural
buffers &
environmental
development standards

High In progress? B CCD Staff resources/funding 

h. Review, establish and
adopt updates to Tree
Code

Medium Not budgeted A CCD, 
consultant, 
PC, TUFC 

Funding availability 

(continued) 

Page 97 of 126



 
Community Safety (CS) 

 
Goal 1: Achieve a more sustainable policing model 
 
 Effort Level Status Priority  

Level 
Timeline Team Constraints Related Item Notes 

Action Items 

a. Host Community Town 
Halls to discuss police 
funding and service 
delivery alternatives 
 

High  In progress A FY 24/25 COP, CM, 
Council  

Staff resources CE-G1-A Urgent matter related to budget shortfall, build from 
PSU study, needs extensive public engagement 
program 

 
Goal 2: Mitigate potential natural disasters (wildfire, flood, landslides, earthquake)  
 
 Effort Level Status Priority  

Level 
Timeline Team Constraints Related Item Notes 

Action Items 

a. Remove hazardous 
fuels from and replant 
Bear Creek Greenway 
and Wagner Creek 
Greenway 
 

High In progress A FY 24/25 PW, 
Community 
Partners 

  Multiple projects and funding resources, needs 
coordination among overlapping projects 

b. Become a Firewise & 
Fire-Resistant 
Community 

High Not started B FY 24/25 PD, FD5, 
County OEM 

Lack of resources  Need to develop relationship with Fire District 5 

 
Goal 3: Increase our emergency preparedness 
 
 Effort Level Status Priority  

Level 
Timeline Team Constraints Related Item Notes 

Action Items 

a. Update Emergency 
Operations Plan and 
Continuity of 
Operations Plan 
 

High  A  COP, CM, 
Consultant 

Funding and staffing  CS-G2-B 
CS-G3-B 

 

b. Develop an emergency 
response partnership 
with other jurisdictions 

Medium In progress A  COP, CM, 
Community 
Partners 

 CS-G2-B 
CS-G3-A 

 

c. Distribute emergency 
preparedness 
information at 

Low In progress B Ongoing  COP    

Page 98 of 126



community events 

d. Continue coordination
with Phoenix-Talent
School District

Low ongoing A Ongoing CM, COP 

e. Establish volunteer &
education programs (i.e.
CERT)

High C COP, 
community 
partners 

Staff resources Significant level of effort needed to establish and 
sustain a new citywide volunteer program  

Goal 4: Support healthy homes 

Effort Level Status Priority 
Level 

Timeline Team Constraints Related Item Notes 

Action Items 

a. Goal 4 action item here No action items discussed 

(continued) 

Page 99 of 126



Sustainability (S) 

Goal 1: Reduce our carbon footprint as a community 

Effort Level Status Priority 
Level 

Timeline Team Constraints Related Item Notes 

Action Items 

a. Host a Recycle
Roundup to recycle
uncommon items

Low Ongoing B Ongoing CEOD, T4T Together for Talent organizing annual event 

b. Establish an urban
forestry master plan

Medium In-progress B FY 24/25 PW, TUFC Funding ED-G2-D 

c. Increase tree canopy Low In-progress A PW, TUFC Funding S-G1-D

d. Make updates to our
Tree Code

High CDD, 
consultant, 
TUFC 

S-G1-B/C

Goal 2: Become more drought tolerant and fire resistant 

Effort Level Status Priority 
Level 

Timeline Team Constraints Related Item Notes 

Action Items 

a. Pilot citywide Water
Conservation Program

Medium C FY 25/26 PW, FD Staff, funding Take on this project following completion of water 
meter replacement. Install recycle system at Splash 
Pad as immediate item  

(continued) 

Page 100 of 126



Transportation (T) 

Goal 1: Have better Greenway accessibility to Talent 

Effort Level Status Priority 
Level 

Timeline Team Constraints Related Item Notes 

Action Items 

a. Update Transportation
Systems Plan

High Delayed B FY 25/26 PW, 
consultant 

Delayed due to state 
funding reduction  

b. Establish Creel Road
Connector

Low C PW, ODOT Funding, T-G1-A

c. Pursue Safe Routes to
School Funding

Medium In progress FY 25/26 PW, 
consultant 

T-G1-A Preapplication for state funding submitted March 24, 
2024 

d. Reassemble Traffic
Safety & Transportation
Commission

Low In progress A June 2024 PW, PC Staff resources, 
competing priorities 

e. Improve walkability Medium B PW, council Better definition of 
action item needed 

T-G1-A

f. Engage more with RVTD Medium C PW, council T-G1-H Water goals? 

g. Talent Trolly High C PW, CM 

h. Bus shelter Medium A PW, CM T-G1-A How many? Where? 

(continued) 

Page 101 of 126



Community Engagement (CE) 

Goal 1: Communicate better with the community
Effort Level Status Priority 

Level 
Timeline Team Constraints Related Item Notes 

Action Items 

a. Make city documents
available online
(resolutions,
ordinances, master
plans)

Medium In progress A FY 24/25 CR, CEOD Staff time CE-G1-D New website will help improve this service 

b. Assess our current
practices through an
equity & inclusive lens

High B FY 25/26 CM, CEOD, 
consultant 

Lack of documentation 
on current policies and 
procedures  

CE-G1-I Need to train staff or retain consultants 

c. Together for Talent
survey

High? CEOD, CE-G3-A Two survey items in this document 

d. Keep website current Medium In progress A Ongoing CEOD, CR New website online, April 2024, will enhance this effort 

Goal 2: Provide strong committee and commission support 

Effort Level Status Priority 
Level 

Timeline Team Constraints Related Item Notes 

Action Items 

a. Convene quarterly chair
summits

Low In progress A May 2024, 
quarterly there 
after  

CR, CM, 
COED 

Staff time CE-G2-B Need committee, commission handbook and training 

b. Training and handbooks
for committees and
commissions

Medium A CE-G2-A 

Goal 3: perform regular community engagement 

Effort Level Status Priority 
Level 

Timeline Team Constraints Related Item Notes 

Action Items 

a. Conduct door-to-door &
event surveying

High C CEOD Too many completing 
priorities  

Community surveys are a major undertaking, consider 
contracting with SOU 

b. Publish a quarterly
newsletter

Medium Ongoing B Ongoing CEOD Staff time Retain current practice of utilizing Talent News and 
Reviews publication 

Page 102 of 126



c. 

Economic Development (ED) 

Goal 1: Understand what businesses need
Effort Level Status Priority 

Level 
Timeline Team Constraints Related Item Notes 

Action Items 

a. Establish or participate
in Economic
Development Cohort

Low-medium A FY 24/25 CM, 
Community 
partners 

Staff resources CE-G1-A, ED-G1-B Need more information 

b. Host a roundtable with
commercial property
owners and developers

low A FY 24/25 CM, CE, CDD Staff resources CE-G1-A, ED-G1-A 

Goal 2: Help recruit and establish essential businesses 

Effort Level Status Priority 
Level 

Timeline Team Constraints Related Item Notes 

Action Items 

a. Implement Gateway
Plan

High In progress, 
seeking 
funding 

A FY 23/24 - FY 
26/27 

CM, COD, 
PW 

Funding and staffing ED-G2-D Multifaceted major project, consider city’s top overall 
priority 

b. Update our Economic
Opportunity Analysis

Medium B FY 25/26 CDD, 
consultant 

Funding and staffing ED-G2-C 

c. Update Economic
Development section of
Comprehensive Plan

Medium B FY 25/26 CDD, CM, ? Funding and staffing ED-G2-B 

d. Move from planning to
implementing

Medium In progress A CDD, CM Competing day to day 
management demands 

ED-G2-A/B/C 

Goal 3: Become a stronger destination 

Effort Level Status Priority 
Level 

Timeline Team Constraints Related Item Notes 

Action Items 

Page 103 of 126



a. Build new tennis courts High A PW, 
contractor 

Need funding ED-G3-B/C Funding maybe 

b. Resurface skate park Medium In progress A FY 24/25 PW, 
contractor 

ED-G3-A Seeking grant funding, funding availability will be 
known in 09/24 

c. Update Chuck Roberts
Park Master Plan

Medium In progress, A Summer 2024 PW, CM 

d. Install public murals
downtown

High B PW, TPAC Need funding plan 

e. Update Architectural
Guidelines for
downtown

Medium In progress B TARC, CDD ED-G3-F TARC project 

f. Update historic
buildings map

Medium B CDD, TARC ED-G3-E TARC project 

g. Promote historic district Medium B CDD, TARC, 
CEOD 

Need funding plan ED-G3-D/E/F 

h. Develop Town Hall
rehabilitation and use
plan

High B FY 24/25 CM, PW, 
consultant 

Funding ED-G3-F/G 

i. Prioritize parks projects Medium B Summer 2024 Council, PW, 
P/RCOM 

ED-G3-A/B 

(continued) 

Page 104 of 126



Sustainable Foundation (CE) 

Goal 1: City code, policies, and practices are consistent, up-to-date, and documented 
Effort Level Status Priority 

Level 
Timeline Team Constraints Related Item Notes 

Action Items 

a. Develop long-term
financial plan and
management polices

High In-progress A FY 24/25 FD, CM Low property tax 
revenues  

CS-G1-A Must consider as top city priority 

b. Develop investment
policy

Medium A FY 24/25 FD Competing priorities CE-G1-A 

c. Update personnel
handbook

Medium B CM, FD Competing priorities 

d. Implement
organizational
efficiencies

High In progress A CM, 
management 
team 

Competing priorities CE-G1-A 

e. Update technology
management policies

Low In-progress B FD, contractor Competing priorities CE-G1-D 

f. Update job descriptions Medium B CM, FD Competing priorities CE-G1-C 

g. Close out TURA Medium B CM, FD Retain funding for 
Gateway project  

h. Develop annual training
schedules for each
position

Low C Dept. heads Competing priorities CE-G1-I 

i. Enact DEI policy and
training program

Low C CM, FD, 
consultant 

resources CE-G1-H 

Goal 2: City infrastructure is well-maintained 

Effort Level Status Priority 
Level 

Timeline Team Constraints Related Item Notes 

Action Items 

a. Implement plans that we
have

Medium In progress A Ongoing All team 
members 

Lack of funding CE-G1-A Some planning documents are becoming dated, some 
commissions are developing new plans 

b. Develop Facilities
Master Plan

Medium B PW, FD, CM, 
PC 

Lack of funding, staff 
resources 

CE-G1-A 

c. Calculate maintenance
costs by project type

High B FD, PW Lack of funding, staff 
resources 

CE-G1-A More information needed 

Page 105 of 126



d. Establish equipment &
vehicle replacement
schedule

Low Near complete A FY 23/24 FD, PW, PC Competing priorities CE-G1-A 

Goal 3: Revenue keeps pace with expenses
Effort Level Status Priority 

Level 
Timeline Team Constraints Related Item Notes 

Action Items 

a. Assess water rates and
adopt water rate model

Medium Complete A FY 23/24 PW, FD 

b. Recalculate System
Development Charges

Medium Not started A FY 25/26 FD,PW, 
consultant 

Funding for 
engineering study 

c. Cost of Service study Medium Not started A FY 25/26 FD, PW, 
consultant 

Funding 

d. Update all fees and
charges for service

High Not started A FY 24/25 FD, PW, 
consultant 

Competing priorities 

e. Change business
license system and
update fees

High Not started A FY 24/25 FD Competing priorities 

f. Establish and hold a
reserve in each fund

High Not started A FY 25/26 FD, Council 

g. Pursue grant funding Medium Ongoing A ongoing All dept. 

Key 
CCD Community Development Director 
COP Chief of Police 
PWD Public Works Director 
CM City Manager 
FD Finance Director 
CR City Recorder 
CEOD Community Engagement & Outreach Director 

Page 106 of 126



City Council Agenda Report 
Meeting Date:  April 17, 2024  Staff Contact:  Gary Milliman 
Department:  City Manager E-Mail: gmilliman@cityoftalent.org 
Staff Recommendation:  Motion 2 (below) Estimated Time:  10 mins.

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL 
Consideration of Urban Forestry Committee Recommendations on Public Tree Management 

BACKGROUND 
At its meeting of March 13, 2024, the Talent Urban Forestry Committee made two recommendations 
to the City Council: 

1. That the TUFC be consulted prior to the removal of any public trees.
2. That the City Council adopt a policy that all public street tree locations shall be preserved as

suitable tree planting sites.

Staff comments on Recommendation 1: Ordinance 2019-958-O establishes the general duties and 
responsibilities of the TUFC.  There is nothing in this Ordinance that envisions that the TUFC would 
have oversight authority on the placement or removal of trees. 

Currently, the responsibility for management of the public right of way and public lands rests with the 
City Manager or his/her designee. The City Manager has authorized the removal of several hazard 
trees within the last 90 days. Three additional trees are scheduled for removal, one located at the 
Historical Society property (a hazard tree) and two at the Police Station that must be removed to 
complete the solar array project. Requiring consultation with the TUFC prior to removal of any public 
tree is an impairment in the City staff authority and responsibility for the management of the City’s 
public lands. If the City Council wishes to provide some level of oversight to the TUFC in the removal 
of trees, staff suggests language similar to that which is in Ordinance 2019-958-O (H)(I) which 
provides that the TUFC would advise city staff upon request. 

Staff comments on Recommendation 2: Clarification is needed as to what is intended to be 
enacted by this motion.  Upon initial review, it appears that the desired policy would be a blanket 
policy that all existing street tree locations be preserved as-is and are deemed suitable as tree 
planting sites.  To staff’s knowledge, there has been no inventory of street tree locations throughout 
the City to determine that all current sites are suitable for maintaining existing trees or hosting new 
trees.  Another concern is how such a policy might affect future public works projects; i.e., if a street 
widening or utility installation is needed and that project encroaches upon an prexisting tree location, 
would the public improvement need to be designed in such a manner as to preserve the tree location?  
There are also development review implications with such a policy.  The Community Development 
and Public Works Departments should be consulted on any such policy proposal. 

Additional comments: Attached are photographs of three locations where trees were planted on the 
recommendation of the TUFC. The trees planted at all of these locations are now impairing the 
visibility of directional traffic and control signs and should be removed. Using the recommended 
policies listed above, all three locations would be deemed suitable for tree planting sites, and staff 
would be required to consult with the TUFC prior to the remove of these trees.  

10.1

Page 107 of 126



 
RELATED COUNCIL POLICIES  

 
POTENTIAL MOTIONS 

1. Take no action. 
 

2. Direct staff to include the recommendations of the Talent Urban Forestry Committee with 
respect to tree removal on public property and tree site preservation on public property for 
consideration in the program of work when a new City Tree Ordinance is developed. 
 

3. Direct staff to return with an amendment to Ordinance 2019-958-O requiring the city staff to 
consult with the Talent Urban Forestry Committee prior to removing any tree on public property, 
excepting trees that have been determined to be a hazard to public safety. 
 

4. Direct staff that all trees or previous tree location sites in the public right-of-way be retained. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

• Ordinance 2019-958-O – Ordinance Codifying the City of Talent Urban Forestry Committee 

• City of Talent Municipal Code – Chapter 18.135 – Public Trees 

• City Charter – Chapter 5 – Powers and Duties of Officers  

• Images of Trees at Talent Ave./Main, Seiber St./Main, Seiber St./alleyway  

• Submitted comments by Talent resident Jason Clark 

Page 108 of 126



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-958-O 
AN ORDINANCE CODIFYING THE CITY OF TALENT  

URBAN FORESTRY COMMITTEE 
 
WHEREAS the City Council of Talent, Oregon desires to codify the creation of the 
Talent Urban Forestry Committee in the Talent Municipal Code.  
 
THE CITY TALENT DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:  
 
A new Chapter is hereby established to read as follows:  
 
Section 1. [Urban Forestry Committee Created] There is hereby created a Committee to 
be known as the Urban Forestry Committee. Its primary purpose shall be to assist and 
advise the City of Talent in the planning and developing of tree establishment, protection 
and preservation strategies consistent with the Tree City USA guidelines.  
 
Section 2. [General Duties and Responsibilities] The Urban Forestry Committee is an 
appointed citizen body with the primary responsibility of providing recommendations to 
the Mayor and City Council on direction, planning and policy on matters pertaining to 
Tree City USA activities, tree planting care and establishment, and protection of public 
street trees. Duties and responsibilities of the Urban Forestry Committee shall be as 
follows:  
 
A. To conduct an inventory of public properties and city rights-of way in need of tree 
plantings, recommend priorities for planting efforts, and provide a written report yearly to 
the City Council.  
 
B. To develop and recommend to the City Council for its adoption, a master list of 
approved street tree species suitable for planting along the streets of the City, along with 
recommended and prohibited species for other locations and uses. Such lists shall be 
reviewed periodically and incorporated into the Talent Zoning Code.  
 
C. To develop and recommend to the City Council for its adoption, policies for the 
planting, care and protection of public trees throughout the City.  
 
D. To promote public knowledge and understanding of the value of urban tree canopy 
and street tree planting programs and requirements, and support community engagement 
through volunteer opportunities. 
 
E. To work with city staff on Tree City USA planning and documentation requirements 
including the annually updated City of Talent Urban Forestry Plan and planning Arbor 
Day events.  
 
F. To conduct an inventory and map the locations of "heritage trees" within the city.  
 

Page 109 of 126



G. To make recommendations to city staff for placement and species selection for all 
trees planted in parks and other city-owned properties.  
 
 
H. Upon request, -to act in an advisory capacity to city staff or other city committees and 
commissions regarding implementation of arboriculture best practices and standards. 
 
I. Upon request, to make recommendations to developers regarding placement and 
species selection for new developments in the city.   
 
Section 3. [Membership – Compensation]. The Urban Forestry Committee shall consist 
of five (5) members and two (2) alternates to be appointed by the Mayor with the consent 
of the City Council. Two (2) member may live outside the city limits of Talent. 
Committee members shall receive no compensation for their service. A City Council 
member appointed by the Mayor and agreed to by Council shall serve as the Council 
liaison to the Committee.  
 
Section 4. [Terms of Office – Vacancy]. Terms of office shall be for a period of two (2) 
years and shall expire on December 31 of the second year. Any vacancy shall be filled by 
the Mayor, with the consent of Council, for the unexpired portion of a term.  
 
Section 5. [Officers]. The Urban Forestry Committee shall, at its first meeting of each 
calendar year, elect from its appointed members a Chair, Vice-Chair and Secretary.  
 
Section 6. [Duties of Chair and Vice Chair]. The Chair shall preside at all meetings and 
set the agenda. The Vice Chair shall perform the duties of the Chair in the absence of the 
Chair, and such other duties as may be assigned by the Chair. The Chair or Vice Chair 
shall preserve the decorum at the Urban Forestry Committee meetings.  
 
Section 7. [Minutes]. The secretary shall keep an accurate record of all Urban Forestry 
Committee meetings, including written minutes of all meetings. A written report shall be 
made monthly to the City Council summarizing all Committee activities and action. A 
copy of the approved minutes signed by the Chair of each Urban Forestry Committee 
meeting shall be delivered to the City Recorder for filing and said minutes shall be a 
public record and available for public inspection.  
 
Section 8. [Quorum – Meetings – Rules and Procedures—Number of Meetings]. Three 
(3) of the voting members of the Committee shall constitute a quorum. The Urban 
Forestry Committee shall adopt rules and procedures consistent with city ordinances and 
this resolution. The Committee meetings shall include at least one (1) regularly scheduled 
meeting per month, unless canceled at the direction of the Chair due to lack of Committee 
business or other reason.  
 
Section 9. [Removal from Commission]. If a member of the Urban Forestry Committee, 
without valid reason, misses three (3) regular Committee meetings within the same 
calendar year, that member shall be subject to removal from the Committee. In addition, 

Page 110 of 126



a Committee member may be removed, with consent of the City Council, following a 
public hearing. This process may be initiated by the City Council or by a unanimous 
recommendation from the remaining Urban Forestry Committee members.  
 
Section 10. The City of Talent Urban Forestry Committee will develop and maintain 
Bylaws once the Committee is formed.  
 
Duly enacted by the City Council in open session on October 16, 2019 by the following 
vote:   
 
Ayes: 0   Nays:   0 Abstain: 0   Absent: 0   
 
 
       
Gabriella Shahi, City Recorder and Custodian of City records 
 

Page 111 of 126



18.135.010 
18.135.020 
18.135.030 
18.135.040 
18.135.050 
18.135.060 
18.135.070 
18.135.080 
18.135.090 

Chapter 18.135 
PUBLIC TREES 

Sections: 

Description and purpose. 
Definitions. 
Permission to plant or remove. 
Tree planting notification. 
Trees prohibited. 
Public tree maintenance. 
Public tree committee. 
Arbor Day observance. 
Tree nominations – Heritage or significant. 

18.135.010 Description and purpose. 

The purpose of this chapter is to provide for the regulation of planting, maintenance, and removal of publicly 
owned trees, shrubs, and other plants adjacent to public rights-of-way. [Ord. 918 § 1 (Exh. A), 2016; Ord. 817 
§ 8-3J.1000, 2006.] 

18.135.020 Definitions. 

“Public tree” means a tree or woody plant with its base located within or adjacent to a public right-of-way or any 
tree or woody plant within a city park, or other publicly owned property. Public trees include trees within existing 
planting strips or sidewalk tree wells. Public trees typically have a single trunk at least two inches in diameter at a 
point six inches above the mean ground level at the base of the trunk. 

Significant and Heritage Tree. See TMC 18.100.020. [Ord. 918 § 1 (Exh. A), 2016; Ord. 817 § 8-3J.1010, 2006.] 

18.135.030 Permission to plant or remove. 

The removal of public trees should be compatible with guidelines adopted by the Oregon Department of Forestry. 
Except for the purposes of removal of dying or hazardous branches, maintenance by city crews, or pruning for 
purposes of maintaining tree health, no person shall plant, remove, cut above the ground, or disturb any public 
tree until a permit has been issued by the community development department. A permit for the removal of any 
public tree shall be in accordance with the tree preservation and protection requirements of Chapter 18.100 TMC 

Ch. 18.135 Public Trees | Talent Municipal Code Page 1 of 5

The Talent Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 979, passed May 17, 2023.

Page 112 of 126

https://talent.municipal.codes/TMC/18.100.020
https://talent.municipal.codes/TMC/18.100


and shall also require a right-of-way permit. Applicants for a removal permit may be required to mitigate the 
removal of tree or trees in accordance with the provisions of TMC 18.100.070, Mitigation. 

Planting of public trees shall generally follow construction of curbs and sidewalks; however, the city may defer tree 
planting until final inspection of completed dwellings to avoid damage to trees during construction. When public 
trees are proposed, their selection and installation shall be according to the following requirements: 

A. Species Selection. Trees shall be selected from the city’s adopted tree list and shall be appropriate for the 
planning location based on the criteria found therein. 

B. Caliper Size. All street trees shall be a minimum of two-inch caliper at time of planting. 

C. Spacing and Location. Street trees shall be planted within the street right-of-way within existing and proposed 
planting strips or in sidewalk tree wells on streets without planting strips, except when utility easements occupy 
these areas. Street tree spacing shall be determined by the type of tree(s) selected and the canopy size at maturity 
and, at a minimum, the planting area shall contain 16 square feet or, typically, four feet by four feet. In general, 
trees shall be spaced at 30- to 40-foot intervals, except where planting a tree would conflict with existing trees, 
retaining walls, utilities and similar physical barriers. All public trees shall be placed outside utility easements and 
clear vision areas. 

D. Growth Characteristics. Trees shall be selected based on climate zone, growth characteristics and site 
conditions, including available space, overhead clearance, soil conditions, exposure, and desired color and 
appearance. The following should guide tree selection by developers and approval by the city: 

1. Provide a broad canopy where shade is desired, except where limited by available space. 

2. Use low-growing trees for spaces under low utility wires. 

3. Select trees which can be “limbed-up” to comply with vision clearance requirements. 

4. Use species with similar growth characteristics on the same block for design continuity. 

5. Use deciduous trees for summer shade and winter sun, unless unsuited to the location due to soil, wind, 
sun exposure, annual precipitation, or exhaust. 

E. Replacement. Replacement of public trees shall be the responsibility of the developer for a period of two years 
from the time of planting, and shall be guaranteed through a warranty bond prior to final plat. [Ord. 918 § 1 (Exh. 
A), 2016; Ord. 817 § 8-3J.1020, 2006.] 

18.135.040 Tree planting notification. 

The city may plant trees on any public right-of-way, park, or other public property. The city will notify private 
property owners 24 hours in advance before any tree, shrub, or plant is planted on public property within six feet 
of any owner’s property. [Ord. 918 § 1 (Exh. A), 2016; Ord. 817 § 8-3J.1030, 2006.] 

Ch. 18.135 Public Trees | Talent Municipal Code Page 2 of 5

The Talent Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 979, passed May 17, 2023.

Page 113 of 126

https://talent.municipal.codes/TMC/18.100.070


18.135.050 Trees prohibited. 

No person shall plant on any public property or private property the following trees if the tree’s future critical root 
zone (CRZ) at maturity (CRZ is defined in TMC 18.100.020) is within the public right-of-way: poplar, willow, 
cottonwood, fruit tree, or ailanthus, unless part of a city-authorized riparian restoration project. The 
recommended street tree list should be consulted before any tree is planted within or adjacent to the public right-
of-way. No person shall plant any tree anywhere in the city so as to adversely affect public utilities. [Ord. 918 § 1 
(Exh. A), 2016; Ord. 817 § 8-3J.1040, 2006.] 

18.135.060 Public tree maintenance. 

A. Tree Maintenance. The city may require any trees, shrubs, plants, or vegetation in any public right-of-way, park, 
or other public property to be trimmed or pruned. 

1. The city will maintain trees within the public right-of-way along collector and arterial streets. 

2. The owners of property abutting streets other than arterial and collector streets in residential zoning 
districts within the city shall be responsible for the care and maintenance (trimming, pruning and spraying) of 
trees and shrubs located in the public right-of-way. Property owners shall also be responsible for repairing 
damage done to a street, sidewalk or curb by the roots of any tree or shrub where the CRZ is within the public 
right-of-way. 

3. All owners of property within the city shall be responsible for the following: 

a. Trimming, pruning and spraying trees on private property that overhang a public right-of-way. 

b. Trimming and pruning of vegetation that obstructs motorist or pedestrian view of traffic signals, 
signs, streetlights, street names, or other markings or safety fixtures in the public way. Branches over the 
street shall be pruned to a height of 13 feet, six inches and eight feet above a sidewalk. 

c. Repairing damage done to a street, sidewalk or curb by the roots of any tree or shrub on private 
property. 

d. Removing trees and shrubs on private property that have been declared a public nuisance or a 
hazard. 

e. Debris Removal. The person working on trees on a street, highway, or public area shall be required to 
remove all debris from the right-of-way by sunset of the same day, unless specifically authorized to do 
otherwise by the community development director, or designee. The acceptable standard shall be a 
broom clean finish or better. 

4. If any property owner neglects to perform any duty required by this section and causes injury or damage 
to any person or property, that owner shall be liable to the person suffering such injury or damage and shall 

Ch. 18.135 Public Trees | Talent Municipal Code Page 3 of 5

The Talent Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 979, passed May 17, 2023.

Page 114 of 126

https://talent.municipal.codes/TMC/18.100.020


indemnify the city for all damages the city has been compelled to pay in any such case. Such damages may be 
collected in a civil action against the property owner. 

B. Tree Topping. It shall be unlawful as a normal practice for any person, firm, or city department to top any tree 
in the public right-of-way. Topping is defined as the severe cutting back of limbs to stubs larger than three inches 
in diameter within the tree’s crown to such a degree so as to remove the normal canopy and disfigure the tree. 
Trees severely damaged by storms, or other causes, or certain trees under the utility wires or other obstructions 
where other pruning practices are impractical may be exempt from this provision. 

C. Dangerous Tree – Nuisance – Removal. Any tree or shrub growing in any public property, on private property, or 
in a planting strip abutting public property, which is a public safety hazard or which may endanger the security or 
usefulness of any public street, sewer, or sidewalk; is declared to be a public nuisance. The abatement procedure 
of Chapter 8.10 TMC shall be applied. 

D. Trees – Abuse – Mutilation. No person shall abuse, destroy, or mutilate any tree, shrub, or plant in a public 
planting strip, park, or any other public property. This includes attaching or placing any rope or wire (other than 
one used to support a young or damaged tree), signs, posters, or handbills to any public tree; or allowing any wire 
charged with electricity, or any gaseous, liquid, or solid substance which is harmful to the trees, to come in contact 
with the roots or leaves of any such tree. [Ord. 918 § 1 (Exh. A), 2016; Ord. 817 § 8-3J.1050, 2006.] 

18.135.070 Public tree committee. 

The tree committee shall be a subcommittee of the parks commission. The responsibilities of the tree committee 
shall include the following: 

A. Making recommendations to the city council for nominating public trees for locally significant or heritage tree 
designation; 

B. Assisting city staff with Arbor Day observance. [Ord. 918 § 1 (Exh. A), 2016; Ord. 817 § 8-3J.1060, 2006.] 

18.135.080 Arbor Day observance. 

The city shall observe Arbor Day once a year. The tree committee shall assist city staff with organizing any event to 
celebrate Arbor Day and the mayor shall issue a proclamation declaring the observance of Arbor Day. [Ord. 918 
§ 1 (Exh. A), 2016; Ord. 817 § 8-3J.1070, 2006.] 

18.135.090 Tree nominations – Heritage or significant. 

Any community member may go before the tree committee to nominate a public tree to be designated as a locally 
significant or heritage tree. The tree committee will make a recommendation to the city council. Upon owner 

Ch. 18.135 Public Trees | Talent Municipal Code Page 4 of 5

The Talent Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 979, passed May 17, 2023.

Page 115 of 126

https://talent.municipal.codes/TMC/8.10


The Talent Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 979, passed May 17, 2023. 

Disclaimer: The city recorder’s office has the official version of the Talent Municipal Code. Users should contact the 
city recorder’s office for ordinances passed subsequent to the ordinance cited above. 

City Website: www.cityoftalent.org 
City Telephone: (541) 535-1566 

Hosted by Code Publishing Company, A General Code Company. 

approval, city council may pass a resolution to designate the nominated tree. [Ord. 918 § 1 (Exh. A), 2016; Ord. 817 
§ 8-3J.1080, 2006.] 

Ch. 18.135 Public Trees | Talent Municipal Code Page 5 of 5

The Talent Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 979, passed May 17, 2023.

Page 116 of 126

http://www.cityoftalent.org/
tel:541-535-1566
https://www.codebook.com/


Chapter V 
Powers and Duties of Officers 

Section 22. Committees and Commissions. 

The Mayor and Council shall appoint: 

(1) Members of committees and commissions established by Council, and 

(2) Other persons required by the Council to act in an advisory capacity to the Council or its appointed 
committees and commissions. 

Section 23. City Manager. 

(1) The City Manager is the administrative head of the City government. 

(2) A majority of the Council shall appoint and may remove the Manager. The appointment shall be without 
regard to political considerations and solely on the basis of administrative qualifications. 

(3) The Manager need not reside in the city. 

(4) Upon accepting the appointment, the Manager shall furnish the City a bond in an amount and a surety 
approved by the Council. The City shall pay the bond premium. 

(5) The Manager shall be appointed for a definite or indefinite term and may be removed by a majority of the 
Council at its pleasure. 

(6) The Manager shall: 

a. Attend all Council meetings unless excused by the Council or Mayor; 

b. Keep the Council advised of the affairs and needs of the City; 

c. See the provisions of all ordinances and resolutions are administered to the satisfaction of the Council. 

d. See that all terms of franchises, leases, contracts, permits and privileges granted by the City are fulfilled; 

e. Appoint, discipline and remove appointive personnel, except appointees of the Mayor and Council; 

f. Supervise and control the Manager’s appointees in their service to the City; 

g. Organize and reorganize the departmental structure of City government; 

Ch. V Powers and Duties of Officers | Talent City Charter Page 1 of 3

The City Charter is current through amendments effective January 1, 2017.

Page 117 of 126



h. Prepare and transmit to the Council an annual City budget; 

i. Supervise City contracts; 

j. Supervise operation of all City owned public utilities and property; and 

k. Perform other duties as the Council prescribes consistently with this charter. 

(7) The Manager may not control: 

a. The Mayor or the Council; 

b. The Municipal Judge in the judge’s judicial functions; or, 

c. Except as the Council authorizes, any appointee of the Mayor and Council. 

(8) The Manager and other personnel whom the Council designates may sit with the Council but may not vote on 
questions before it. The Manager may take part in all Council discussions. 

(9) When the Manager is absent from the City or disabled from acting as Manager, or when the office of Manager 
becomes vacant, the Council shall appoint a Manager Pro Tem, who has the powers and duties of Manager, except 
that the Manager Pro Tem may appoint or remove personnel only with approval of the Council. 

(10) Except in Council meeting, no council member may directly or indirectly, by suggestion or otherwise, 
attempt to influence the Manager or a candidate for the office of Manager in the appointment, discipline, or 
removal of personnel or in decisions regarding City property or contracts. A violator of this prohibition may be 
removed from office by a court of competent jurisdiction. In a Council meeting, members of the Council may 
discuss with, or suggest to, the Manager anything pertinent to City affairs. 

Section 24. Municipal Court and Judge. 

(1) If the Council creates the office of Municipal Judge and fills it by appointment, the appointee shall hold, within 
the City at a place and time that the Council specifies, a court known as the Municipal Court for the City of Talent, 
Jackson County, Oregon. 

(2) Except as this charter or City ordinance prescribes to the contrary, proceedings of the court shall conform to 
general laws of this state governing justices of the peace and justice courts. 

(3) All area within the City and, to the extent provided by state law, area outside the City is within the territorial 
jurisdiction of the court. 

(4) The Municipal Court has original jurisdiction over every offense that an ordinance of the City makes 
punishable. The court may enforce forfeitures and other penalties that such ordinances prescribe. The court also 
has jurisdiction under state law unless limited by city ordinance. 

Ch. V Powers and Duties of Officers | Talent City Charter Page 2 of 3

The City Charter is current through amendments effective January 1, 2017.

Page 118 of 126

hflores
Highlight



The City Charter is current through amendments effective January 1, 2017. 

Disclaimer: The city recorder’s office has the official version of the Talent City Charter. Users should contact the 
city recorder’s office for amendments adopted subsequent to the amendment cited above. 

City Website: www.cityoftalent.org 
City Telephone: (541) 535-1566 

Hosted by Code Publishing Company, A General Code Company. 

(5) The Municipal Judge may: 

a. Render judgments and impose sanctions on persons and property; 

b. Order the arrest of anyone accused of an offense against the City; 

c. Commit to jail or admit to bail anyone accused of such an offense; 

d. Issue and compel obedience to subpoenas; 

e. Compel witnesses to appear and testify and jurors to serve in the trial of matters before the court; 

f. Penalize contempt of court; 

g. Issue process necessary to effectuate judgments and orders of the court; 

h. Issue search warrants; and 

i. Perform other judicial and quasi-judicial functions prescribed by ordinance. 

(6) The Council may authorize the Municipal Judge to appoint municipal judges pro tem for terms of office set by 
the Judge or the Council. 

(7) Notwithstanding this section, the Council may transfer some or all of the functions of the Municipal Court to 
an appropriate state court. 

Ch. V Powers and Duties of Officers | Talent City Charter Page 3 of 3

The City Charter is current through amendments effective January 1, 2017.

Page 119 of 126

http://www.cityoftalent.org/
tel:541-535-1566
https://www.codebook.com/


Page 120 of 126



Page 121 of 126



Page 122 of 126



Page 123 of 126



Page 124 of 126



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-___-R 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TALENT, OREGON, 

SEEKING TO MITIGATE THE HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL RISKS OF METHANE GAS 

Recognizing the  air pollution and climate emissions public health risks associated with using natural gas “methane gas” which is 80-
90% methane, the City of Talent announces and affirms its commitment to mitigating these risks through various means and its 
intention to investigate City authority to mitigate these risks.  

The Talent City Council Finds 
A. The use of methane gas in homes and buildings generates indoor and outdoor air pollutants including nitrogen oxides (NOx) fine

particulate matter (PM2.5), benzene, formaldehyde, and carbon monoxide (CO), exposure to which is associated with asthma,
cardiovascular disease, cancer, and premature death;1 2

B. Appliances and equipment in Oregon’s homes and businesses powered by fossil fuel (methane gas, oil and others) generates as much
outdoor NOx pollution as the state’s cement manufacturing and power generation facilities combined;3

C. Burning fossil fuels in homes adds to existing concentrated pollution “hotspots,” which disproportionately occur in low-income
communities and communities of color. Racial and ethnic groups are also disproportionately exposed to ozone and other criteria pollutants
such as NOx, PM2.5, and CO;4

D. According to data from Harvard public health researchers, outdoor pollution from fossil-fuel- powered building equipment caused an
estimated 20 premature deaths in Oregon in 2017, ;5

E. Outdoor fossil fuel pollution from Oregon’s homes and businesses drives health impacts pegged at almost $88 million annually.6 When
climate change damages to health, property, agriculture, infrastructure, and social stability are added to the societal costs of this building
pollution, the cost is substantially higher at $1.1 billion;7

F. The State of Oregon joined eight other states pledging that zero-emission electric heat pumps will constitute at least 65% of residential-
scale heating, air conditioning and water heating equipment shipments by 2030 and 90% by 2040;89

G. A typical new Oregon home with heat pumps will save the occupant $390 on utilities each year compared to homes that burn methane
gas,10 and a rapid transition to electric heat pumps in the state’s homes and businesses could unlock more than $1 billion in system-wide
savings by 2050;11

H. In order to meet the City’s climate goals as stated in the city’s Comprehensive Plan (pdf), Clean Energy Element, it is critical to support a
transition to zero emission technologies in homes and buildings.

1 American Lung Association (ALA), “The Health Impacts of Combustion in Homes,” January 2023.
2 Yannai S. Kashtan et al, “Gas and Propane Combustion from Stoves Emits Benzene and Increases Indoor Air Pollution,” June 2023 Environmental Science and Technology 
3 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), 2020 National Emissions Inventory, March 2023. Appliance emission estimates include residential & commercial emissions for the gas, oil, & other fuel 
categories, with commercial emissions adjusted to exclude certain non-appliance sources like pipeline compressor stations. 
4 Timothy Q. Donaghy et al., “Fossil fuel racism in the United States: How phasing out coal, oil, and gas can protect communities," Energy Research & Social Science 100:103104, June 2023. 
5 Based on RMI analysis using median estimates from the results of 3 reduced complexity models used in: Jonathan J. Buonocore et al., “A Decade of The U.S. Energy Mix Transitioning Away from
Coal: Historical Reconstruction of the Reductions in the Public Health Burden of Energy,” Environmental Research Letters 16(5):054030, May 2021, as well as additional analysis from the study’s lead 
author. 
6 EPA, CO-Benefits Risk Assessment Health Impacts Screening and Mapping Tool (COBRA), April 2021. Analysis used selected subsectors: commercial gas, commercial oil, and residential other. 
7 Based on estimates of premature death & emissions cited in this report, & using EPA’s Value of Statistical Life (September 2023) & latest Social Cost of Carbon (November 2023, 2% discount rate).
8 Northeast States for Coordinated Air Use Management, “Nine States Pledge Joint Action to Accelerate Transition to Clean Buildings,” February 2024. 
9Zero emission alternatives to fossil fuel building systems are available, as heat pump technologies can provide space heating and water heating in buildings without generating any air pollution from
onsite fossil fuel combustion, and the same device can cool the building as well — something that is increasingly critical in a warming climate; 
10 RMI, “All-Electric Construction: A Good Deal for Oregon,” 2023. 
11 Kenji Takahashi et al, Toward Net Zero Emissions from Oregon Buildings: Emissions and Cost Analysis of Efficient Electrification Scenarios, June 2022.

11.2

Page 125 of 126

https://www.cityoftalent.org/SIB/files/Planning/Development_Codes/8-1%20Comprehensive%20Plan-(Effective%2012-20-19).pdf
https://www.lung.org/getmedia/da394c1a-200e-4c89-9947-7ecb1a26571a/The-Health-Impact-of-Combustion-in-Homes.pdf
https://pubs.acs.org/doi/10.1021/acs.est.2c09289
https://www.epa.gov/air-emissions-inventories/2020-national-emissions-inventory-nei-data
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S2214629623001640#bb0975
https://doi.org/10.1088/1748-9326/abe74c
https://doi.org/10.1088/1748-9326/abe74c
https://cobra.epa.gov/
https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2021-10/source-apportionment-tsd-oct-2021_0.pdf
https://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2023-12/epa_scghg_2023_report_final.pdf
https://www.nescaum.org/documents/2.7.24-nescaum-mou-press-release.pdf
https://rmi.org/insight/state-level-building-electrification-factsheets/
https://www.synapse-energy.com/sites/default/files/Net-Zero-Emissions-from-Oregon-Buildings-21-127.pdf


NOW, THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TALENT, OREGON, RESOLVES: 

1. To acknowledge that residents currently employing methane gas-powered appliances and equipment may continue to do so
for the entire life-cycle of the existing appliance and equipment and beyond if no additional infrastructure is necessary or
was made to continue the use after the date of this Resolution,

2. To mitigate the health risks of methane gas combustion for City of Talent residents.
3. To encourage and provide resources to the Together for Talent Committee to work with community partners in educating and engaging

the community on the pollution associated with methane gas in buildings.
4. To task and provide resources to staff to investigate City authority to mitigate the health impacts of methane gas and support the

development of low- or zero-emission standards for appliances.
5. To declare that Talent supports and requests the State leadership, legislature and agencies to: investigate and explore adopting indoor

air quality standards to protect public health;  to investigate and explore adopting outdoor air quality standards, and a transition to zero-
emitting appliances analogous to that adopted by the California Air Resources Board; to include  the adverse health impacts of methane
gas in utility cost-benefit analyses, rate setting and resource planning;  to promote decarbonization while protecting low and moderate
income ratepayers;  to consider amending building codes to address the adverse health impacts;  and to consider rules to prevent
advertisement of methane gas as a clean or safe product.

Page 126 of 126


	0.0 2024-04-17 Agenda - Regular Meeting
	6.1a - Staff Report - PC Member
	ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL
	The appointment of member to the Planning Commission.
	BACKGROUND
	RELATED COUNCIL POLICIES
	POTENTIAL MOTIONS
	ATTACHMENTS

	6.1b - App - PC - Clark, Jason
	7.1 - April Minutes 4.2.24
	REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
	April  5th, 2024 at 4:00 PM

	7.2 - Parks Commission Minutes_2.28.24
	8.1a - ANX  2024-001 CC Staff Report
	8.1b ANX 2024-001 Staff Rpt and Attachments v2
	01a - Attachment 1 - Tech Memo
	01b -  Attach 1 - Tech memo
	process_tech_memo_03_26_24
	Fact Sheet Voluntary Cleanup Pathway
	NoFurtherActionDecisions

	02a - Attachment 2 - Public Comments
	02b - Attach 2 - Public Comments
	Public Comment 1 - annex 2024-001
	Public Comment 2 - annex 2024-001

	03a - Attachment 3 - Application and Exhibits
	03b - Attach 3 - Application and exhibits
	04a - Attachment 4 - Ordinance and exhibits
	04b - Attach 4 - Ordinance and exhibits
	05a - Attachment 5 - Agreement
	05b - Attach 5 -  Agreement
	06a - Attachment 6 - Notices
	06b - Attach 6 - Newspaper notice
	06c - PTSD Website

	9.1a - Staff Report - citywide goals
	ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL
	BACKGROUND
	RECOMMENDATION
	Include review of proposed goals and action plan in the first budget meeting, now scheduled for May 8, 2024.
	RELATED COUNCIL POLICIES
	POTENTIAL MOTIONS
	ATTACHMENTS
	 FY 24/25 - Council Goals, Priorities, and Action Plan

	9.1b FY 24_25 - Council Goals, Priorities, and Action Plan
	10.1a - Staff Report - TUFC Recommendations
	ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL
	Consideration of Urban Forestry Committee Recommendations on Public Tree Management
	BACKGROUND
	Additional comments: Attached are photographs of three locations where trees were planted on the recommendation of the TUFC. The trees planted at all of these locations are now impairing the visibility of directional traffic and control signs and shou...
	RELATED COUNCIL POLICIES
	POTENTIAL MOTIONS
	ATTACHMENTS
	 Ordinance 2019-958-O – Ordinance Codifying the City of Talent Urban Forestry Committee
	 City of Talent Municipal Code – Chapter 18.135 – Public Trees
	 City Charter – Chapter 5 – Powers and Duties of Officers
	 Images of Trees at Talent Ave./Main, Seiber St./Main, Seiber St./alleyway
	 Submitted comments by Talent resident Jason Clark

	10.1b - Ordinance 2019-958-O
	10.1c - Chapter 18.135 TMC
	Chapter 18.135 PUBLIC TREES
	18.135.010 Description and purpose.
	18.135.020 Definitions.
	18.135.030 Permission to plant or remove.
	18.135.040 Tree planting notification.
	18.135.050 Trees prohibited.
	18.135.060 Public tree maintenance.
	18.135.070 Public tree committee.
	18.135.080 Arbor Day observance.
	18.135.090 Tree nominations – Heritage or significant.


	10.1d - Talent City Charter Chapter V
	Chapter V Powers and Duties of Officers
	Section 22. Committees and Commissions.
	Section 23. City Manager.
	Section 24. Municipal Court and Judge.


	10.1e - Images of trees
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3

	10.1f - Comments by Jason Clark



